STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 7TH, 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
_ during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise,

1. CALLTO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 7, 2015

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 16, 2015

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 23, 2015

: CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )




=~

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15

For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/19/15 $321,858.44. Accounts payable
checks date 06/12/15 for $509,837.26, and $5,023.22, checks date 06/17/15 for $6,000.00, and
checks date 6/26/15 for $812,970.37 and 6,706.34.

For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

ROSENDIN ELECTRIC- Electrical Contractor/880 Maybury Road, San Jose, CA

RENOWN URGENT HEALTH CARE - General/420 USA Parkway, TRI (urgent care)
APPLIED SOIL WATER TECHNOLOGIES -Contractor/56 Coney Island, Sparks (engineering)
HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL - Contractor/1610 Kleppe Ln, Sparks (equipment rental)
LOBO CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/3700 N Virginia, Reno

SIERRA ROOFING SUPPLY Contractor/5900 S Lake Forest Dr., McKinney, Texas

LRG CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor /2215 Driscoll Dr., Reno

QUALITY PLUS SVCS - Contractor/2215 Renaissance Dr., Las Vegas

A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General/3033 Waltham Way, TRI (repair, parts, access.)

SIOAMIO®

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action -~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT {(No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): 2015 Legislative Session review by Walker & Associates,
Bum Hess and Maggie Lowther.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding the request to the Federal Government for an additional zip code in Storey County
specifically for the McCarran portion of the County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The Nevada Department of Transportation, Storey County
Work Program. (Continued from the June 16, 2015 meeting, see file for supporting documents.)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-266 an ordinance
amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a procedure for
permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects and providing
for other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 15-429 setting the tax rate levy for
2015/16.

- DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal of brothel card denial of Carmen Rivera by the
Storey County Sheriff’s Office, pursuant to Storey County Code 5.16.220(G).

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

16

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2015-012, by Jennifer Barnes. The applicant is
requesting a sign variance for the Mustang Ranch Steakhouse at 5 North C Street in Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-086-01). The applicant requests variances to the provisions of
SCC 17.84 (ordinance regulating signs and billboards) for the following purposes: (1) to allow a

2




17.

18.

sign to be more than 15 inches in width (height) which will be attached above the porch facing C
Street of the subject property; (2) to allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union
Street (south) of the subject property, and allow more than 15 inches in width (height) of that
porch-end sign; and (3) to allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window
abutting Union Street but facing C Street (west) of the subject property.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use
Permit No. 2000-222-A-5 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock
Mining) submitted to the Board of County Commissioners a major modification to its mine
operating plan so0 that the board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of
the existing SUP. The major modification will allow Comstock Mining to perform construction
activities of an underground mine portal and underground workings for exploration and mining
allowed by the SUP within and eastward of the Lucerne Resource Area (existing mine pits) in
Southern Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject area map and narrative description are
included in Enclosure B.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Memorandum of Understanding between Storey County
and the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD) for noxious weed abatement in Six and
Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, Virginia City, and American Flat, in Storey
County.

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

20

21

A. HARDSCAPES, INC. - Contractor / 950 Dartmouth Drive ~ Reno (paver installation)

B. ACE GRADING & PAVING - Coniractor / 6015 S. Virginia St., ~ Reno (asphalt paving)

C. AJELECTRIC, LLC ~ Contractor / 3659 Crestridge Way ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

D. ARROW SIGN COMPANY - Contractor / 1051 46t Avenue ~ Oakland, CA (sign contractor)
E. TONIX, LLC - General/3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5, TRI (metal fabrication) location change
F. RICH DOSS, INC. - General/201 Wild Horse Canyon Dr., McCarran (transportation)

. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

* Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.




Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before July 1, 2015; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By m a%%//’)m

Vanessa Stephens Clerﬂ-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 7 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for June 16, 2015
2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
\S _Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

wunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 16™, 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager
Pat Whitten, District Attorney Anne Langer, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Public Works Director
Mike Nevin, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne,
Community Development Director Dean Haymore, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis,
Management Analyst Jessie Fain, Special Counsel Robert Morris.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:02 A, M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 16, 2015
County Manager Pat Whitten requested Item 13 be moved to immediately following Item 9.

Motion: Approve Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by:
Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 1, 2015 Gilman/ McGuffey

Motion: Approve Minutes for June 1, 2015 Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: ~ Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA




5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/05/15 $112,381.28, $429,879.52 and
$50,541.64. Accounts payable checks date 05/29/15 for $311,876.18, $14,463.50 and $7,635.80.

6. For possible action approval of May 2015 Treasurer Report.

7. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. HARDSCAPES, INC. - Contractor / 950 Dartmouth Drive ~ Reno (paver installation)
B. ACE GRADING & PAVING - Contractor / 6015 S. Virginia St., ~ Reno (asphalt paving)
C. AJELECTRIC, LLC - Contractor / 3659 Crestridge Way ~ Reno (electrical contractor)
D. ARROW SIGN COMPANY - Contractor / 1051 46% Avenue ~ Oakland, CA (sign contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by:
Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

~ CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Governmental Services Agreement for Storey
County Economic Diversification District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire
Protection District and Tesla.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses from discussion and voting on this item.

County Manager Pat Whitten said items 8 and 9 will be combined for discussion purposes. Mr.
Whitten thanked and recognized the Tesla team present at this meeting. Mr. Whitten introduced
Daniel Witt, Danny Carpenter, and Alec Leath .

Mr. Whitten stated the Government Services Agreement is basically a provision of Senate

Bill 1, allowing the County to request Tesla to consider services that would be impacted at TRL
These services include additional staffing in the Assessor’s Office, increased police presence, as well
as re-opening the fire station with fire and paramedic staffing. Tesla has consented to fund one
deputy this year and an additional deputy next year. Tesla graciously agreed to fully staff Fire
Station 75 for three years. In subsequent years, other TRI businesses will be asked to participate
based on a formulary adjustment.

Mr. Whitten thanked Special Counsel Robert Morris for his assistance in this matter.

In addition, Tesla has agreed to reimburse the County for the cost of financing, over the nine years of
this Agreement, a fire truck with the ability to reach 75 feet. If another building over 55 feet comes
into the park during the terms of this Agreement, that company will share in the payments.

Mr. Whitten thanked and acknowledged Tesla for their participation.

Daniel Witt, Manager of Business Development & Policy for Tesla Motors, commented on what
Tesla is doing and its pathway to success. Tesla just surpassed 1 billion miles on the existing fleet of
electric vehicles. A stationary storage division of Tesla was recently announced which will put
batteries in homes, as well as cars. These technologies would not be possible without the facility

2




now being built in Storey County. Tesla requires a continued collaborative environment with Storey
County in order to insure success. The GSA is an affirmation of this collaboration.

Mr. Witt thanked the Commissioners, County Manager Pat Whitten, and Counsel Robert Morris.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: What are the material changes to the Agreement presented
today and what has been presented previously?

Pat Whitten replied the difference from the May meeting is the table on page 3, specifically payments
referenced on the fire truck (Quint). There have been no changes from the packet on June 15

Motion: Approve the Government Services Agreement for Storey County Economic Diversification
District No. 1 between Storey County, Storey County Fire Protection District and Tesla, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion
passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

Chair McBride noted the vote is on behalf of the Board of County Commissioners and the Storey
County Fire Protection District Board. '

RECESS AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE .PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD AND
RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding
section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial
abatements of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in Economic Diversification
District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses from discussion and voting on this item.

County Manager Pat Whitten stated that SB1 empowered the County to work with giga-projects like
Tesla, to make reasonable adjustments to plan review and permitting fees. The County reviewed
over-all costs and overhead regarding the Tesla project. This is a 10-year agreement, retroactive to
July 2014. The County, and various staff members, has agreed to this Ordinance. No material
changes have been made to this document for some time

Special Counsel Morris said this Ordinance makes the County a better place to do business. This
abatement will contribute to economic development.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked for clarification of Mr. Morris’ statement. In reference
to economic development, does this refer to only the TRI district or a county-wide impact?

Pat Whitten answered it is not only county-wide, but regionally and even for the State. The advent of
Tesla has brought economic diversification and prosperity already just in terms of the interest
generated to top-tier companies. The “Tesla effect” will be seen helping Virginia City merchants,
Reno, and surrounding areas. The County is abating to promote economic diversification and

prosperity.




Daniel Witt thanked the Board for its time and for passing this item.

Motion: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County
Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting fees to participants in
a qualified project in Economic Diversification District No. 1 and providing for other properly related
matters, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chair McBride,
Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-428 Authorizing transfer of
funds to the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association for crack-sealing of Cartwright
Road.

Pat Whitten: A couple of years ago, the sum of $10,000 was dedicated to each of the four different
communities - the River District, the Highlands, Virginia City, and Mark Twain. The Highlands one
acre and ten acre property owners associations have requested their $10,000. Thank you to these
associations for coming together with this request. This fiscal year’s funds will go to a contract for
crack-sealing of the privately owned paved portion of Cartwright Road.

Jay Carmona, President of the Highlands One Acre Association: Thank you to the County for the
effort and help in getting these funds.

Motion: Approval of Resolution #15-428 Authorizing transfer of funds to the Virginia City Highlands
Property Owners Association for crack-sealing of Cartwright Road, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chair Gilman, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous
vote, (summary: Yes=3)

Recess at 10:38 A.M,, reconvene at 10:49 A M. Commissioner Jack McGuffey is excused from the
meeting,

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve and authorize the chairman to sign the contract
between Storey County and the State of Nevada, State Public Works Division of the Department of
Administration to continue to provide water service from the Marlette system.

Special Counsel Robert Morris reviewed changes to the contract. In Section 3.1, Term of the
Agreement, change “section 3.1” to “section 3.2”. In Section 6.6, the County has been paying a base
water rate, plus an additional rate for the bonding of improvements to the system. The change
would be to reflect the County pays the general obligation bonds in addition to the base water rate.

Mr. Morris requested approval of this contract with the requirement that the District Attorney’s
Office make the above two changes before the Chair signs the agreement.

Vice Chair Gilman: The contract is interesting, complicated and has far-reaching consequences for
Virginia City being under the State umbrella and ownership of the contract. After review, Mr.
Gilman is in support of the motion.

Chair McBride: Expressed concern about section 3.2 Termination. What is the need for termination
as the system is our only source of water.




Mr. Morris: There is a 10 year period between the notice (termination) and actual termination. This
would give Storey County an opportunity to look at other sources and to be able to terminate
agreement if another source is found.

Vice Chair Gilman: Stated concern that State has the right to choose an alternative use which it may
feel is more important than serving Virginia City.

Mr. Morris: The State owns the system but the direction of the Legislature is to make sure the supply
to Virginia City is continued. There is language and history that protects Virginia City in the use of
that water.

Pat Whitten: Storey County has the rights to the water but not system ownership from the point of
acquisition to the center of Interstate 580. In a worse-case scenario, there would be 10 years to build
a delivery system from the point of acquisition to the Interstate 580, where the County’s ownership
begins.

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director: It would not be in best interests of the State to stop delivery to
the largest historical landmark in the country. The County has a very cohesive working relationship
with the State of Nevada and the Marlette Water System. We work together on ideas to improve the
system.

Mr. Whitten: The State has made massive improvements to the east-slope catchments that increase
the yield significantly and better assured water resources. Because of the County’s partnership with
the State, the County is able to reap the benefits of those projects.

Gus Nunez, Administrator of State Public Works Division: The State Public Works Division concurs
with the previously mentioned corrections. It is not the intent of the State to not provide water. This
is a historical system. The State is making arrangements to improve system so the resource can be
preserved.

Chair McBride: The County appreciates the hard work of the Marlette Water System team.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Is there any language in the Agreement stating the State does
not have any intent to not provide water now or in the future.

Mr. Whitten: To be clear, this is about the delivery of County water, not the State’s water. The
County has the rights to the water under the Franktown Decree. This Agreement is the conveyance
of water using the State’s system. The water rights are not at risk.

Mr. Morris: The Agreement remains in effect as long as the system is operated by the State. There is
a minimum of 10 years before anything can change.

Motion: Approve and authorize the chairman to sign the contract between Storey County and the
State of Nevada, State Public Works Division of the Department of Administration to continue to
provide water service from the Marlette system, to include the two conditions that need to be
changed in the document and request the District Attorney to make those changes, Action: Approve,

5




Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chair Gilman, Vote: Motion passed by
unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:  Presentation from the Nevada Department of
Transportation to discuss Storey County’s Work Program

Pat Whitten introduced NDOT Deputy Director Bill Hoffman and thanked Mr. Hoffman for the great
work by NDOT, as well as Comstock Mining, on Highway 342,

Bill Hoffman commended Pat Whitten, Austin Osborne, and Commissioners for a great effort on the
Highway 342 project.

Mr. Hoffman said NDOT. County Tours and workshops are important to NDOT as well as the
communities. Mr. Hoffman introduced State Transportation Board Member & State Controller, Ron
Knecht; Lee Bonner, Local Government Liaison; Andrea Edwards, assisting Mr. Bonner; Christina
Leach from the Federal Highway Administration; Thor Dysen, Russ Hyers, and Lou Paley from
NDOT.

Mr. Hoffman gave a slide-show presentation and review of NDOT’s Comprehensive Planning
Program. A workshop was held last October with Storey County staff. Various issues within the
County were discussed at the workshop.

Mr. Hoffman reviewed highway safety and crash data.

Mr. Hoffman also discussed Federal funding and pending projects. There are two projects within
Storey County to be accepted by the County. The first is on SR341 truck route - installation of guard
rail. The second is SR439, USA Parkway, from U.S. 50 to I 80 ~ design, build, construct and extend
current roadway from 50 to 80.

Chair McBride: Could the funds set aside for USA Parkway be taken away to finish another
interstate project.

Mr. Hoffman: Those funds are secured for USA Parkway. Mr. Hoffman advised that NDOT tracks
ideas, needs and/ or projects electronically on an active database.

Chair McBride: The issue of the crumbling curbs and gutters in Virginia City needs to be addressed.
Another concern of residents is the acceleration lane exiting the Lockwood transition road towards
Reno is very short. Lengthening that lane needs to be looked at.

Vice Chair Gilman is advised by the District Attorney that he must recuse from voting on this item.

Vice Chair Gilman, as Commissioner for Lockwood, reiterated the seriousness of the transition road
issue in Lockwood. There is a serious drop off on the side of this lane.

Mr. Whitten: The County is honored to have State Comptroller, Ron Knecht present as well as NDOT
Director, Bill Hoffman. The County’s relationship with NDOT is the very best.




No action taken.

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Joe Curtis, Emergency Management:

In regards to the rain problems in Mark Twain, there were no reports of structural damage or
injuries. A lot of dirt was lost into other lots. Sand and sandbags were brought in the next
day. The Sheriff’s Cert team assisted with filling sandbags.

A Hazardous Materials Exercise Plan, in conjunction with Ardagh at TRI, will be held on
October 17th. This is funded by a State Grant.

Cherie Nevin, Community Services Director:

On July 25%, the Virginia City Highlands community will host its first, annual Community
Awareness Day from 10 am to 2 pm at the Highlands Fire Station. This is a time for residents
to come together and learn about services available to the community.

The Nevada State Firefighters Association Convention will be held in Virginia City June 24t to
the 27th,

The Annual Health Fair will be held November 7, 2015 from 10am to 1 pm at Piper’s Opera
House. Flu shot clinics will be held on October 14% in Lockwood and in Mark Twain on
October 21st, |

Francis Melhop, Executive Director at St. Mary’s Art Center, has stepped down. The Board is
looking to fill that position.

Mark Twain Community Center Board meeting will be held June 17t at 6PM.

Ron Englebrecht, Mark Twain Community Center:

On behalf of the Mark Twain residents, thank you to the County for all of their efforts.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner:

Comstock Mining is working on the eastside of SR 342 to complete the realignment.

Comstock Mining will be coming to the Board for an underground component update to their
operating plan for validation. Indications are that the underground mining will be
substantially larger than originally anticipated.

The December-January timeline for completion of Phase 2 is still on target.

A Planning Commission meeting will be held in Mark Twain on June 18t

The Master Plan is on-line and is substantially up-dated and is about 80% complete, There
will be changes.

The main trunk of the mono-pine is up in the Highlands. Branches will be installed over the
next few weeks and it should be up and running by the end of summer.

Dean Haymore, Community Development Director:

The mono-pine contract is being worked on with Verizon,

There are reports that two wells have gone dry in the Mark Twain area. Some re-drills have
been done in the Highlands.

Daily meetings are being held with Tesla engineers. Building at the Tesla cite is going on 24
hours a day. Talks are being held with design engineers on the Project Energizer.




* More single family dwellings are being built in the Highlands, a couple in Virginia City, and a
new commercial/industrial building is also going up in Virginia City.

e Mr. Haymore and Mr. Whitten are meeting with USDA next week.

¢ Aqua Metals purchased 12 acres in TRI and will be building the latest technology of re-cycled
battery facility.

Mike Nevin, Public Works Director:

¢ In the recent rain, flash-flooding occurred at the bottom of Six Mile Canyon, as well as in most
of the Mark Twain Estates area. Rock, debris, and sand came down hillsides and overtook
drainages, culverts and went through yards. Equipment was mobilized to clear and make
roadways passable for that night. The next day and continuing, cleanup is still being done.

» A contractor has been employed to do cleanup and improvements in portions of the TRI area.
Final inspection will be done this week.

» The swimming pool opened last Sunday.

e Mr. Nevin, along with Cherie Nevin, has been working with Far West Engineering on the
FEMA, grant-funded project for replacement of 8 culverts on 6 Mile Canyon road. Anticipated
start date is August 2016.

e Crack-sealing work continues on streets in Virginia City and Gold Hill.

Vice Chair Gilman asked what depth are the wells in Mark Twain that have gone dry.

Mr. Whitten indicated most of the wells in that area run pretty shallow. Ron Englebrecht indicated
200 feet is about average.

April Enloe, Senior Center:
e Application has been submitted for two nutrition grants - one for the congregate meals and
one for the home meals.
e For fiscal year 2014-15, 8,953 congregate meals and 7,280 home-bound meals were served.
 Ms. Enloe was honored by the Director of Division of Aging for outstanding outreach
program. Ms. Enloe has been asked to head the Outreach Team for Rural Directors this year.

Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff:
e The 5% Annual Senior Awareness Picnic will be held Saturday June 20%, 12 noon at Miners
Park.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:
e Thanks to everyone for work and great effort in Mark Twain in response to the recent rain
event, including the Sheriff and the Sheriff’s Cert Team, the Fire Department, and especially
Mike Nevin and his team.

Recess at 12:07 PM, reconvened 12:16 PM

12, BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
None




14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve bid award to low bidder Sierra Nevada
Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,044,830.00 for Public Works Project No. ST-2015-181; Cape Seal
Project on approximately 12.31 miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County.

Mike Nevin presented this item. This project has been discussed for several months. Two bids were
received. Low bid was submitted by Sierra Nevada Construction in the amount of $1,044,830.00. The
area includes Mark Twain Estates, all of Sam Clemens from Storey/Lyon County line to Sutro
Springs. All of Lousetown Road from intersection of 341 to intersection of Cartwright Road at the
Fire Station and the County’s 1 mile section of Cartwright Road. In Virginia City, including all of B
and D Streets, Taylor Street, a portion of Stewart Street, all of Washington, Carson and Union Streets,
and a small portion of F Street. And Waltham Way in TRI.

Mr. Nevin recommends approval.

Motion: Approve bid award to low bidder Sierra Nevada Construction Inc. in the amount of
$1,044,830.00 for Public Works Project No. ST-2015-181; Cape Seal Project on approximately 12.31
miles of selected roads and streets in Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary:
Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a License for use of County Property between the
County of Storey (County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain
Community Center (MTCC), a Nevada non-profit corporation.

Cherie Nevin presented this item. Storey County is the owner of real property located at 500 Sam
Clemens in Mark Twain Estates. The building on the parcel is being used as a community center for
the Mark Twain community. The requested license serves as an agreement between both parties on
how the building will be maintained and used as a community center.

Motion: Approve a License for use of County Property between the County of Storey (County), a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada and Mark Twain Community Center (MTCC), a Nevada
non-profit corporation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair
McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of business license for
Montgomery Turner, CCW Instructor/Personal Defense.

Sheriff Antinoro: Mr. Turner meets all requirements and recommends approval.

Motion: Approve second reading of business license for Montgomery Turner, CCW
Instructor/Personal Defense, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by:
Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-423, Augmentation of the Tech
Fund.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed NRS 354, requirements for augment or amending a budget.
The County budgets anticipated needs for the next fiscal year. As additional projects arise,

9




appraisals, approval and specific expenditures are needed and approved. Today’s expenditures and
augmentations are those that have been approved.

The Tech Fund has a recommended increase in appropriations of $15,000.

Vice Chair Gilman: Mr. Gilman is a strong proponent of line-item budgeting and fiscal oversight
and responsibility by all departments. As a part of line-item budgeting, there will be functions and
growth that require augmentation. This is proper fiscal management of County resources. The
augmentations today have been pre-approved and addressed during the year. Approval is required
by statutory requirements.

Motion: Approval of Resolution #15-423, Augmentation of the Tech Fund, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous
vote, (summary: Yes=2)

County Manager Whitten: From now on staff is committed to endeavor to augment quarterly.

Vice Chair Gilman expressed his support of this concept. Due to the growth in the County, especially
in TRI, Mr. Gilman said he is delighted the County is taking this direction. Thank you to Mr.
Gallagher and all the departments.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-424, Augmentation of the
Justice Court Fund.

Mr. Gallagher: Additional, un-anticipated revenue of $5, 000 in the Justice Court Fund is applied to
Professional Fees for an audit not anticipated.

Motion: Approval of Resolution #15-424, Augmentation of the Justice Court Fund, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous
vote, (summary: Yes=2)

20, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-425, Augmentation of the Park
Fund.

Mr. Gallagher: $11,000 interest for Virginia City Highlands to be appropriated for paving a
basketball court and for a building permit.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: $2,000 was budgeted, and this increase to $13,500 is to cover
expenses. Is that correct? Why is this called interest? What about the $74,000 that was allocated to
the Highlands fund?

Jessie Fain, Management Analyst: The un-anticipated funds came from interest.

Motion: Approve Approval of Resolution #15-425, Augmentation of the Park Fund, Action:

Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by
unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

10




21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-426, Augmentation of the
Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund.

Mr. Gallagher: It is recommended that the un-anticipated balance of $146,000 be appropriated to
salaries and wages, special event funding, Visitor Center expenses, professional fees, and capital
outlay, fairground seating and panels.

County Manager Whitten: All purchases were approved by the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Motion: Approve Approval of Resolution #15-426, Augmentation of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission Fund, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair
McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #15-427, Augmentation of the
General Fund.

Mr. Gallagher:  There were additional, un-anticipated resources - beginning fund balance- of
$2,610,663. It recommended that $2 million be allocated to capital projects, for on-going and future
projects. The balance to professional fees, TRI center remodeling and Title 17 publications. $118,000
interest will go into the Park Fund, conferred and approved by audit later this year.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: What is the $2 million fund to be used for?

County Manager Whitten: That is unknown at this time. Funds will be used at some point, subject to
the Commission’s approval of certain projects not yet identified. Projects that require approval will
be agendized. At a recent meeting of Highlands 10 acre Board, building of a community center was
discussed. The Capital Projects Fund could be a partial source (of funds), subject to request from the
combined Highlands Boards and County Commission approval.

Motion: Approve Approval of Resolution #15-427, Augmentation of the General Fund, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by
unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Virginia Divide
Sewer, per NRS 354.598005.

Mr. Gallagher: Augmentations are necessary in salaries and benefits, operating supplies, capital
outlay, and interest for the USDA loan.

Motion: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Virginia Divide Sewer, per NRS 354.598005, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by

unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

11




24, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Fire Protection
District 474, per NRS 354.598005

Mr. Gallagher: Augmentation from contingency to capital outlay, computer equipment, ambulance
supplies, personal protection equipment, and building maintenance.

Motion: Approval of transfer of appropriations, Fire Protection District 474, per NRS 354.598005,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion
passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations, General Fund, per
NRS 354.598005.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed transfer of funds from Capital Outlay (Capital Projects Fund) for Fire Station
5, Sheriff and District Attorney’s Office, the Bank building, and B Street parking lot, Also, transfers
from Contingencies to Capital Outlay for various projects and expenditures.

Motion: Approval of transfer of appropriations, General Fund, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote,
(summary: Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
26. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A. SOLAR CITY CORPORATION - Contractor / 3055 Clearview Way ~ San Mateo, CA (solar
install.)
TESLA MOTORS, INC. - General / Gigafactory Electric Avenue (manufacturing) TRI
SEQUEL ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, LLC - 1425 4th Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical contractor)
EDWARDS ELECTRIC SERVICE, LLC -~ 6222 St. Louis Street ~ Meridian, MS (electrical
contractor)
SMITH STORAGE SYSTEMS - 18875 Mesquite Avenue ~ Reno (racking installer)
STEPHON'S MOBILE BISTRO - General / 1810 Andesite Avenue ~ Reno (food truck)
IONIX, LLC - General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

onw

T 0w

County Manager Pat Whitten, on behalf of Community Development recommends approval of items
a through f£.

Motion: Approve items a., b,, ¢, d,, e, and {,, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

Mr. Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, requests continuance of items g. and h.

Motion: Continue items g. and h., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by:
Chair McBride, Vote: Motion passed by unanimous vote, (summary: Yes=2)

12




27. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: = NDOT’s presentation packet contains minutes of a
Transportation Workshop. Included is a statement that the County is looking into a Redevelopment
District, a Commission of Cultural Affairs, and history preservation program/funding organization.
What is going on with these items?

County Manager Whitten: The meeting was held last October and attended by several
representatives of the County. As explained in Mr. Hoffman’s presentation, this was a workshop
where all ideas are thrown out. These were conceptual ideas or very the beginning of exploratory
programs. The County does receive grants from the History Preservation Fund and CCA funding
(Commission on Cultural Affairs). There is no organized effort, only discussion, regarding a
Redevelopment District.

28. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 1:04 PM

Respectfully submitted,

13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 7 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda; Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for June 23, 2015
2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: _
Depagrtment Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager  Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied {

Continued

Agenda Item No,




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 238D, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER - CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Commissioner McGuffey (via teleconference), County Manager Pat
Whitten, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, District Attorney Anne Langer, Comptroller Hugh
Gallagher, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Planner Jason VanHavel, and Administrative
Assistant Susan Breylinger.

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:00am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 23, 2015

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 23, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 15-422 setting water rates for the
communities of Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City and sewer rates for the communities of
Virginia City and Gold Hill effective July 1, 2015.

Mr. Nevin provided an overview of the resolution as presented; he added that the meeting was
properly noticed as required by NRS. This is the last year of the five year term on increases.

1




Additional costs in operation, construction, and maintenance require an increase in rates for the
water and sewer system. Included in the costs are USDA loan re-payment fees for the construction of
the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Water and sewer system rate increases were based on a rate analysis prepared 5 years ago. Atthat
time, the Water and Sewer Board elected to increase rates over the 5-year period rather than have a
large increase in one year. This is the last year of that 5-year period.

The residential base rate for water will increase $4.51, bringing the minimum base rate from $32.46 to
$36.97 monthly for the first 2,000 gallons of water usage. Each additional 1,000 gallons of water will
be charged at the rate of $2.99, which includes a rate increase in the cost of wholesale water delivery
from the State.

The commercial base rate for water will increase $6.30, bringing the minimum base rate from $49.62
to $55.92 monthly for the first 2,000 gallons of water usage. Each additional 1,000 gallons of water
will be charged at the rate of $3.90, which includes a rate increase from the State.

Construction water will be charged $49.80 Administrative billing fee per month and $3.90 per each
1,000 gallons.

Late charges are increased to 10% and will now be in-line with other Counties and agencies. The late
charge will be added to accounts on the 26% day of the month.

There is a residential discount of 10% for Senior Citizens over the age of 65 for the monthly water
service. Proof of age and approval from the Public Works Director are required.

The increases will provide a cushion in the water system which would be needed in the event of an
emergency and to make some long-standing improvements, including pipe-line work to be done in
the next couple of years.

Residential Sewer rates will increase a total of $1.93 per month. Commercial rates will have a
monthly increase of $3.17 per month.

Water & sewer hookup fees remain the same.

County Manager, Pat Whitten said the County is sensitive to the need for adjusting rates. The 5 year
old study yielded the fact that rates had not been raised in 12 years. This should be the last rate
increase for the time being. However the study will be up dated every 2 or 3 years to stay
competitive with neighboring markets and ensure that revenues cover all costs of service. A ot of
work still needs to be done on the water & sewer systems. The County is exploring ways to finance
this work in a way that would not further impact rates.

Motion: Approve resolution 15-422 setting water rates for the communities of Virginia City, Gold
Hill and Silver City and sewer rates for the communities of Virginia City and Gold Hill effective July
1, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)




ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action}
None

6. ADJOURNMENT
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 10:15 AM

Respectfully Submitted,

&( _—
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 06/19/15 $321,858.44. Accounts
payable checks date 06/12/15 for $509,837.26, and $5,023.22, checks date 06/17/15
for $6,000.00, and checks date 6/26/15 for $812,970.37 and 6,706.34.

2. Recommended motion; Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@Cﬁﬁy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
[ | P

Agenda Ttem No.




YIENSYIIL

HATTOHLAWCD
FENCISS IIWWNOD HENOISS IHWHOD NYWEITHD
PSISUCTSSTWWOD JO pIeog AjUno) Aax03s syl Aq paasoxddy
¥y 858 'TZE pesANgsTa
0E"9¥8'¥T P IQADNPAag ©3 ISISURL] I98N
0g°Z60'L 1a1td dag ITQ U0 PAIIX Spag sshorduy
52 8¥%L'6EC t31sodsg a09xtg eadkordwdm
TE'9SE'T texoaYy) asdActdug
8€°LET'E 1SNOIYD J0o3oMpag
18°L8L'0S {64148 IGI ASJSURAL IVEN
Junowy saded # peq
/# dwg
g L 9 & % ¢ z T :isdnoxn T1103keq
ST/¥T/90 :93ed puUs-poTiag ST/6T/30 33Ra M29UD aernbay :odfl TToIAed
ZUYNIHITING xa381Bay ¥Mosud

5

abeg

WHLEAS TTIO¥AVd AINNOD AZYOLS

Te30

TeIoL
2305
1230
Te30L
T®I0L

Te30L

§ aq
JE el

LZ9Zi60 ST/LT/90 :uny
¥oTS0ud 3dey




a TTISSNE ' NOANVHE 08EZ8

05°§1€E 0§ LET PETEL ST/ET/9 SAUTYIEY GIAVH
00°88 00ZEL ST/TT/9 ¥IVAAE OIOWH
. SHSITUSUIING AuEs GLEES
% 88 ¥y 88 BITEL ST/21/% T00d -ANYS HETW
LONCO¥d ELEHONCD FLITYSVE gLEEY
Z6'ET5'9 0008 CEBEL  ST/2T/% DNINUYI
89" 95T EEZEL ST/21/9 SEITAANS ONIIVYHAO DSIW
S8 98T EECEL ST/TT/9 SEIT44NS HNILYIIS0 SL IS
00" 555 £ETEL ST/ZT/9 IYNENEYE (102 AZYYd QHEE
TL°T £ETEL ST/2T/9 HOYILE04
ST°T €EEEL ST/ET/9 ADYLEOd TYNOILUNIALNI
00°6% £E€ZEL  ST/TI/9 FDYLGOA
00852 £€ZEL  ST/ZT/9 DNINIVHEL
2976671 €EBEL  ST/2T/9 ONINYETD LEJUYD SL IS
00°9 £€CEL  ST/TI/9 DEY ¥ONUL AZ¥d FWIJ
00709 LETEL ST/2T/9 SENDSHEY Ol ¥EATCHNAIT aav
86768 £EEEL  ST/TT/9 SYEACD L¥ES Z.LY
56759 £ETEL ST/TL/9 ¢t I8 ¥od §8wid
LE'66E'T £ETEL ST/21/9 MONWL AB¥d H¥Id ¥0d TIEHS
00°2Z€ CETEL ST/21/9 MATA MSNEIFETL - SIYIR ¥
00°'08 E£ETEL ST/21/9 ONINYYS
95 92¢ T £ETEL ST/21/9 FTOIHAA HSYHD ¥IZOCQ
96825 EETEL ST/2T/9 ATITHEA FSYHD ¥AZOA
85°LE £ETEL  ST/TI/® MATA XONJILIUIL - STYAW €
8BS ZRL EEZEL  ST/ZI/9 INIVH LNZWdTNDF
95° 8T EETEL ST/21/% SYTAOD UVETH
96°LS EEEEL ST/ZT/9 $OYL ALITIGYINNODDOY
08 8LZ EETEL ST/ET/9 SHITEAS ONILVHIAO
POLZH YOINEWY 20 ANVE LiLeee
BE ETT 8€° €T POTEL ST/ZT/9 ODLSOD
00'007 8GZEL ST/21/9
AQNEM ‘S0DYE 9LEES
00°'S1S 00°STS PITEL ST/2T/9 ZLIM Fdis
ONT ‘DI¥IDETE ¥ONEL 2 OINV SLEEZE
09 8%¥% 09°8%% 680EL  ST/ET/9 SA00H ASENIHD/VZINYNOL DA
ONI ONIHSITENd YIGYDEY YLEES
00°052°T 00°052"1 ELEEL ST/ZT/9
U0 W OOHAITY CYOVZANY £LELS
6L 2% 6E°ZE T9ZEL ST/CT/9
d7 ANYE0¥d SYDINIWY ZTLEZE
1%°991 08°9¢ ETTEL ST/2T/9 HO
64708 ETTEL ST/ET/9 Jd0HS
£9° 5% ETTEL ST/T1/9 dOHS
25°0T TEEEL ST/21/9 ANANOYT FL 1S
LL'g TETEL ST/2T/9 AYANOYT ZL 1S
?8 €T TEZEL S1/21/9 AdONOYT TL 1S
JNI ODSTIY TLEZB
98 68 95" €T TEZEL  ST/ZT/® SEITIANS SWA
0E°99 TETEL ST/2t/9 SEIT44ANS SHE
ONI NON S¥DHIY 0LEES
00°0%% 9 00'00%'¢T LETEL ST/ZT/9
00 0FS T LETEL ST/TT/9 AVW I¥0480s
00°00S‘T LETEL ST/21/9 AWK
00°000'T LETEL ST/2t/9 AVH
DI SWELSAS YIVQ AEONYAQY 69EE8
IYLOL INAOWY #SNYHL 21va # o/d NOIIAI¥OSEd ADITOANI FOANBA YIEWON
ADEHD ADFHD
; ST/ZT/9 WRLSIDEW ADTHD ST/0T/90 ¢ ®3ed uny
T abeg ALNNOD XFHOLS §1ETAd foN Jzodax

w;w




00 2L T60EL ST/2T/9 SIOE '€ HNOO-TZ AYMW
D17 TTIN QTIOP ADOLSWOD 96EES
05 448 05°L6 SITEL ST/2T/9 1/% ONILIAW 40 TONVHD
00082 S9TEL ST/21/9 SHHAVAXYL ININONITAJ
(DA) TIDINQUHD ADCLSHOD SEETE
00°9T¥'S 00°9T%'S FETIEL ST/ZT/9
ONI ISHHD ALINORKHG)D VEEZE
007 0S€ 00°0S€E TLIEL SL/2L/9 ONILSOH 93M TYNNNY
ANYIWOZ ONIHSITIERd Q0D £6ETE
00" 0€ 00 0€ 95TEL ST/21/9 SEEJ LAN0D SA¥E OD AHYCLS
AZENSTALL, NOSYYD J0 ALID [ 4344
TZ S0T'9 06" LES'T €TTEL S1/21/9 LOT DNINEYd 100d
TE'LES'T €ZTEL ST/21/9 10T OMINYYd TO0d
00" 0SL £ZTEL ST/21/9 10T ONINN¥Yd T00d
00009 £TTEL S1/21/9 LOT DNINEYL 1004
00 0sL £TTEL S1/21/9 LOT ONIN¥Yd 1004
00" 056 £ZTEL ST/21/9 LOT DNIA¥Yd T00d
d¥0CO SNININIL HIITIIANID TEEES
00" g2 0o'ez SE0EL ST/ZT/9 dOHS LAID ¥Od SOVH AANYD
FIDNYIIIA & JIHD 06E28
00 6% 00 6% 0STEL ST/21/9 HIVAEY ¥4I
D L¥EEF0Y ‘YHATANYHD 68EZ8
007202 00202 ZZTEL ST/TT/9 INIVIW ON¥ LI04d4AS Ao
DNI 3TTASYD gBEzZe
00°'0F%T 00°0%T OLTEL ST/2T/9 TAAVHNYA
NYAMESNODENS HALYM NOSHWD LBEER
89 %ZV'S TIL TSL'T 1TIEL ST/2T/9 TESIA ¥ INO -ME
BE"80L'T TZIEL ST/2T/9 TESEIA ¥ INA-MA
607596"% TZIEL ST/21/9 THSIIA ¥ INO-Md
ONI Q02 TI0 ATTIVA NOSHYD 98E£Z8
00°052 007082 69TEL ST/TT/9 SiYd €
g0¥d ATINEANL XIID NOSEYD S8€Z8
LL69S Y0’ LE 0ZTEL ST/ZT/9 SLIEE ~¥ETIYES AOWdD
85'8T 0ZIEL ST/2T/9 HANYETID-dOHS
62 €T 0ZTEL ST/21/9 ¥ILIII ADOLS
S6°' 8T 0TIEL ST/21/9 HELTIL ADOLS
05" 2T DETEL ST/21/9 WOOT LIT48-EF8TSHL
gL' VT DETEL s1/21/9 SAVEILE-0FESSHA
0% LT DECTEL s1/et/9 HOSNES IdH¥-vSzsTad
0% ¥LT 0ZIEL ST/21/9 HOSNAS IQIE -8G2FSLI
666 0ElEL  ST/Z1/3% YYEY LIJN00Y 8SZFSLY
90°61 0ZIEL  ST/ZT/S LI¥ YELIId 8SZFSLI
-LLTSTT 0ZTEL  ST/2T/9 WALIIS YIITTME
L0 ECT 0ZTEL ST/21/9 SUHLIIA AOHS
T -] ozZleL ST/2T/9 NIVW LIVg-TLH "YIJ
B6" L 0ZTEL ST/ZT/9 HAY¥L T¥OIYLIDETA -dOHS
-0g" 0ZTEL ST/ET/9 LIQIAD OSIW
SL¥¥d QLOY ALID TYLIAVD ¥eEZE
08'9% 05'9% LBIEL ST/2T/9 COOMADOT YAMES 3 YTLYM
NAWIAOHAWI TYRENED NOANYD £BEZE
00 0% 00°0G 6TIEL §T/2T/9 YANIVELS 803 LANSYD -1004
TYINLENANTI TIN¥OAITVD ZHETB
00°05¥ 00°50% 060EL ST/21/9 ST0Z '€ ANNL-TZ AVH
00" &% 060EL ST/21/9
SIMET ILIODE ‘rIIEwdnd T8EEC8
00709 00709 ZTZEL ST/21/9 LPOETAY YEACCH :SIELYLSE
IYLOL LNOOWY #ENVAL FIvd NOIIAI¥OSEd IDICANI HOGNEA YIEHON
ADFHD ADTHD
ST/ZT/9 HJILSISEY ADIHD ST/0T/290 ¢ a3eq ung
4 sbeg AINNCD XAE¥OLS STETEd oM 3zodey




£6°P0E 8T EETANA ST/2ZT/9 dHYd LOT DNINH¥Vd 2 TIYM

09°FE9'E 9LTEL  ST/ZT/9 INTYH NOILVYDILIW ATIW XIS
DNIYTINIONT LSAM ¥uvd 0TvEs
08" LS 08°LS LLTEL S1/21/9 HAILNED dAMMDT -EFII0D
00 SONY HEWIYd 60TER
8L79E9 62 €TT 6ETEL ST/2T/9 ASSY C(IONZETICS-Nud M7T
ST°6E BETEL ST/ZT/9 0¥d WHEINAH -¥dd M1
0T €T GETEL ST/Z1L/9 FOH ‘H¥OL-X¥L MT
¥Z TIL EETEL 51/21/9 NOILYOI¥ET -%NYE
SLONACYd NOIIVOI¥dT ONIMI 80%2Z8
2% 9LZ'0¢E Ty 9LT 0E 8BTEL ST/2T/9 AOYIE - SHIIA¥ES DISNIHOA
SLINSNCD DISNIUOI LYATONI LovER
B0 056 0678 8ETEL ST/21/9 ANOD L¥D £0685Md
91 0FF SETEL ST/ZT/9 T€ TEA-ZLLM U
BS'LT BETEL ST/2T/9 WaY -$SZSTMA
0T TV BETEL ST/ZT/9 ZINT M¥E DIWYHID-dOHS
L8°% SETEL ST/ZT/9 ETId TIO-MDOLS
59" ¥4 GETEL ST/CT/9 90€ NID-HATL
86 L 8ETEL ST/ET/9 AYTE MITATIYS ~$ZE8 P08
85" 6L 8ETEL ST/2T/9 90€ NAD-907€
0L°ZT6 8ETEL ST/ZT/9 DAPZ TAQ -0PE9SHA
8821 BETEL  ST/ZT/9 0%-0T TAA-BSZFGLI
18716 BETEL  &T/ZL/9 SHIIM ‘DHATd-B8STPGLI
0E" ¥ S£TEL  ST/ZT/9 aOW NOILOI¥Z-2a7d
LGTSL 8ETEL ST/ZT/9 Lood ‘©7d ¥¥dS 0TE9S0S
ONI ATd4NS OINY LIOITIZ 90728
007000'SsT 00°000°'S 9ETEL ST/21/9
00" 000'0T 9LTEL ST/21/9
ALINOHINY AZJ DIMONODT S0%ES
00° 06 00°06 ¥ETEL ST/21/9 INENISENENIEY
NHOL ' ENSTUING y0%¥Z8
05'28%'T 05°28%'T BETEL S1/21/9 HIIJAQ
dT NOLLOAIO¥d FYI4 LHESHT £0% 28
5% 8LE S6° 6% BLIEL ST/2T/9 HELITA ¥YATQOD HIALVM DOIKW
sg e PIZEL ST/21/9 YATO0D/¥ALTII HALYM
56" G 19TEL  ST/2T/% EZJ YETO0D ATHINOW
56°9F S€zE€L  ST/ZT/9 dTIYM TL IS
S6°0€ SEZEL ST/E1/9 HTIYM TL LS
S6EL SEREL ST/TT/9 UELYM ZL IS
S6°52 8TZEL ST/TT/9
06° 15 ZFTIEL ST/ZT/9 SYETO0D JYALYM HD
ONI ¥S0 SHOIYA Z0%E8
00°'36 00'56 6TZEL ST/2T/9 SHONYTIYE TL IS
S5YI2 WOLSND 1098
00°09T 00°9€1 PE0EL  ST/ZT/9
00 %g TEOEL ST/ET/9 ST0Z ‘£ "NAL-TE AWM
¢ OIAYLOO ‘YISEHED 00%ER
€1°959'L 00°8E9'C £60EL ST/2T/9 HOUYES ITO009
ET°9TL'E £60€L ST/ZT/9 HUYES ETP00D
00°096 £60€L ST/ZT/9 SONILEEW LENUYW TIVHS
00" z5¢ £60EL ST/ZT/9 HONYIYE SAdWd 3471
+ YIQHW SIdEDNOD FATIVIED (32411
LT EE LT €€ TLZEL ST/ZT/9
SNOIINTOS SN DYSHE 0DLSOD BEEZH
00°000°T 00°000°T £STEL ST/2ZT/9 LAYSES SAUVW IS NOILY¥I0T
T7 SOIAALS FIACGH ¥DOLSWOD LGEER
0024
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNTUL TIVG # 0/a NOIIAI¥OSHG EDIOANI qoaNIA HIGHON
MJEHD ADEKED
§T/21/9 ¥WILSIDAE MNDIHD $1/0T/50 : @3eqg unyg

£ abed ALNGQOD XTHOLE STETEd iON Jxodey




¥e'LE TSTEL sT/21/9 SL5SYTIYE -TLLS

12°1¢ TSTEL  &T/21/9% TZZON ' HEANTZW TSOH Juvd M1
86" ¥E TSTEL  ST/TT/9 MYETHINNOAD -TAYd M1
86 FE ISTEL ST/ZT/9 WYETOANAQED -¥¥d KW
L6°8 TSTEL ST/TT/9 aI¥d FOLOALOEd FADANS-TO0d
S8 LE TSTEL ST/TT/9 ¥OOTI ¥OJ SIVINALYK-TOOd
HOIAMES LIGIED I0dEd FWOH (X444
00'€9T 00°T9T 960€EL S1/21/9 $T0T ‘€ ANOL~TZ AVH
00°€ 960EL ST/ZT/9
OHDS dd¥M HINNOI JIHOLSIH 8ZVER
00°SEL'T 00°52L'T L¥TEL  ST/ZT/9 IISHEM QOW ONINNIT J0d XV
DNIDVHIONDIW I¥ASAC HOIH LZbeS
LLTESE LL7ES6 BEZEL ST/2T/9 SEITAANE SKWE
NIZHOS A¥NEH 9ZVES
POCSTL ¥0'STL TZTEL ST/ZT/9 SISHL ¥ ¥VAD-INYI4 uMS
ar? INIVW TIo¥d A7Td4NS GH 5Z%Z8
00" €Y 00 €Y ZLIEL ST/2T/9% LNAWAYd XOSE
g L3 ' NIHYYE 444
86 89¢ 0007 6zzeL ST/21/% SAILITIIN
B 82ZE 62TEL S1/21/9 LNAY dd GNOd
017 BSLNIWLSAANI 41D EZPES
00" SL 00 5L LEEEL  ST/21/% NOILYDISIIMIDEE DIAHWEEYd .
HOIET NILSOL ‘WWI¥ND ZTPER
00 0ET 00" g% BEEZEL  ST/TT/S TOYLINOD 1SHd ¥4 IS
0099 BEEEL  ST/ZT/9 TOUINOD ISEd SL I8
Sd3d ¥ ELINNEL NISYH IVIED 1Z¥%E8
00°05% 05 Z8€ 68TEL ST/2T/9 MUOM LOYULNOD
05" LS 68TEL ST/EE/9 MHOM LOYYINOCD
WOL ‘' AYIESNYID 0ZvZ8
BZ S¥E 82" SkE 8S0ZEL ST/2T/9 INFMHS INGYD
0 ADNYN NVED 6THER
ZSTSET 79 GET 0STEL ST/ZT/9 SNOIS LIXE-DSDA
-ZLSTT 0STEL ST/2T/9 ¥D SNOIS LINE~DSDA
EL'STT 0STEL ST/2T/9 SNDIS LIXE-3SOA
HIONIVID 81¥Z8
80° 0% 80°0T 9PTEL ST/2T/9 NIVH S¥¥ 20°L6
ONI TALOH TIIH Q108 LIvEZE
£1°825'¢% 26 TEL SPTEL  ST/EL/9 15d ¥ DI-MT
6V 0ET'T SPIEL ST/EZT/9 DEd ¥ ISA -M1
¥E° 965 SPIEL ST/ET/9 23Y M1
BE 68 99ZEL ST/E2T/9 N¥A JOOMAI0T PEFIENET
OTT ADMENT SUILTY 91928
00955 00955 PRLEL ST/2T/9 dEd ¥IV/LYHEH-$5¥ E¥I4 HDA
FOINT ¥IV % ONIIVEH Ladld SIPE8
zZ'O0TY zZZ' 01T SETEL ST/CT/9 SLEEL HN¥C FTEYd
OIILYANINO TOYINVATY LSHIJ FIFZQ
00'SZZ’'2 00°52Z°2 9EEEL ST/21/% ST00L AN3SAY INIVW TYANNY
X1ddNS¥ DAIS ADINNHES HUIL £TVES
£9°665'L 58699 TPTEL S1/21/% STITHM ONOWYIG
89°G88'9 THIEL ST/21/9 STYIHALYH-INITIALYY HD
INI SESIMAUHING NOSNONEI [48°24:]
96" ¥ 96" % TOZEL ST/21/9 SHITAANS INIWADHOINE
ANWAWOD TUNILEVS TT?E8
€965 1E 5L°159'9 9GEEL s1/21/% N¥Id ONIANOS IDF00¥d
sgr9gL’e 95zl ST/21/9 N¥TId ONIANNd LJI00dEd
05 LIL 9gZEL  8T/21/% LIWNYEd ONY DNISEA TIYM
TELOL INACWY #SNVEL qL¥a # 0/d NOIIAIOSEI IDIOANI FOANEA HIGRAN
MDFHO MDIHD

mﬂ\NM\mMWBmHUmMMUMEU mﬁ\oﬁ\wonwuwﬂﬁﬁm
¥ sbeg AINNGY AHAOLS STETES oM 1xodsy




g

Q0S4

TLLSY

YLOPS
86°68€'S
00° 005’8
000001
¥8'ZEL
00" ¥59
00°' 96

6T €0%

GG oTY

BY 58
00'S¢&
00° 008

99°09L°9

BZ 0TS

00" SET

§g°LE

E0°LSF

THLOL
ADEHD

sbeg

a0 5L

0L P2T
8% %5
89 LLT
oL T8
SR

-BL"S

I8°'ST

L ve
B6'68€'9
00°005'2
00°000°T
¥8°ZEL
00" %59
00986
ETE0F

00'g
Q0" s0¥%

8558
00°s¢
007009

TE'9T8'T
T0°0Ev'T
9L EFT’E
LSTOLE

6T 'S%L
BT 'SVT
06 6TE

00 SET

¥0'1E
T892

9% 2T
£E8'FT
S6°'TTT
16759
T6"8€
¥5 9y

LNIOWY

iveedl
£ETEL
oveZeL
9ZTEL
CETEL
06TEL
VBTEL
EETEL
6¥TEL
692¢L
SZTEL
TLZEL
CETEL
PBTEL
860€L
E5TEL

LEQEL
LEQEL

Z0ZeL
LLTEL
SLTIEL

83Z¢L
83ZgL
89CEL
g9g¢eL

¥SCTEL
PSTEL
€rTeEL

2oTel

Z5TEL
ZETEL

TSTEL
T5TEL
TISTEL
TSTEL
ISTEL
isTEL

HSNTIL

ST/ZT/9
ST/2T/9
ST/21/9
S1/21/9
ST/21/9
S1/21/%
ST/ZT/9
ST/ET/9
ST/ZI/9
SI/E21/9
ST/2T/9
ST/2T/9
ST/2T/9
ST/21/%
S1/21/9
ST/E1/9

ST/Z1/%
ST/21/9

ST/21/9
ST/21/9
ST/ZT/9

ST/2T/9
ST/2Z1/9
ST/ZT/9
ST/TT/9

ST/21/9
§T/21/2
ST/21/%

§1/21/9

ST/Z1/9
ST/Z1/9

ST/2T/9
ST/ET/9
ST/eT/9
§T/2T/9
ST/2T1/9
ST/ET/9

ZLYd

§1/21/9

¥ ©/a

NOTI¥OIAIINEDEY JIQINVIvd
SHY.L 'ONIGNIH ‘SUEAI0A
SEIT4dNS FDIJd0

S3IT44NS DAQ DSIR

dddvd

Sa¥d dWYLS

Sa¥d dWVYLS DNOYM - NIQLHEA
SYHATOd 704

S3IT4d405 32Idd40 dWIisd
TIYLENT 939I3 00TX00T

LNWAd TYNIZ-JHS

TYINIC HEIILEH
ONINIVIL ALNdEd
81804 ¥

HAYMTUYH J5IN

ST0Z '€ EMNL-TEZ AWM
HTEWYHD - ZLLM

P1/S DNILSHEL

ST0Z ANAL ¥IADIJASO HITVEH

IAYYDHAN TWI SEHOLIMS dH
SHAVIDIN I9L XZTISSYSV
SEATIDAN I¥L TIYMEHIZ

€10% E0IJ4d0 2d MEN

HT0SH0D NIE OE¥HS E/1
TIVL /T NI QH¥HS
ST/9 ADVIOLS WITd LPT IN

SENT YIHWHW TYONNY

HEL HIJId-0TEISOS
MOHTI -ANTYE

DOALEYS NIWJQ-T100d
¥IXIW INIVA'HSN¥E=T004d
YISOAE I FOVEIVD-DSMT
SASSYID  STHHHM ' SLIE-1004
§47I09d HOUOq -¥ad

SYITICY ¥ FIVL -VI0d

NOLIJTIMDESEd HDIOCANT

¥IALSINDAY AOTHD
ALNOQD XFEOLS

QINFWWUONE J0 JUIN, NYSHCH

TOAUE VAOLNOW

NI SNOTLOTOS EOILL0 OULAR
YINEEOY ‘ INONILUYNW

¥SIT ¥ 11028 ‘NOSIAVW
LTAYOUYH ‘ HTHIMOT

DT SINEAY FNTE aINdIN
HEIT TYNOTIVN NIODNIT

QL7 DNINIVYL ENITIIIT
TIINWYL ¥ AYYYT 'YILSEAT

LSEMATW TIYENIA

¥ NYILSIY¥HD ‘WATHDEINM
oY qar
42 DNILINSNOD GW Z1ZE AYf

JddH NWNNETOW 3 SEWYL

OTT HJHN0S TLT

NI ISW QANI NIVINAOW NOYI

TIDNNCDEACD TYNOIIVNYALNI

A¥ES TVIRLENANI DITNVHAAH

HJOGNFA

ST/0T/90

svbee

LYPESR

9vvEs
svkee
evee
£rveR
[A 444
1v¥Z8
0¥%¥2Z8
6EVZ8

gEDER

LEY¥ZE
aevee
SEVER

wEVTE

EEPZA

(4 44:]

TERER

0EvT8

HEEHON
AOEHD
a3eq uny

STETEd iON 3xodey




9

F6'tet

I5°tee

00’652
LT S8BT

80°€80°¢C

000007y
040 0a%
857 £9¢
TP 5091
98°8%1

00" 00T

00" s5¢
00°5T
00981
05°6¢€

00 TLO'T
99'505°'¢

P1°215°¢€

L9 TIB'S
6% ELT

EQT6EZT

257409

IYLOL
HADEHS

abeg

TS ¥LT
£P°6T

85-LET
08" LE
669
LA ]
00852
LT S8BT

A AN
$.°096°1

00°000'%
00'05%
857 €5¢E
TV S0%°T
98'8¥%T

0008
0008

00 st
00'ST
00°'98T
05°6¢

00 TLO'T
59°305'¢€
00°s00°g
00" %6t
00°'S9T
00°5¢
PLEEE
L9 TIB'S
6% CLE
EL AN 24
65°'¥%8
66'6T
25°L09%9

LNOOWY

s5Z¢€L
SSZEL

Z5CEL
424
[ATANA
[A:144A
EAANA
96TEL

60Z¢t4
60Z€L

9BTEL
SpTeEL
vEZEL
0FTEL
LSTEL

£9T1¢e
EYEEL

SOTEL
SLZTEL
0TZEL
66084
CBTEL
LBTEL
9LEEL
EIRANA
aLeel
9LTEL
8STEL
getTeL
S0CEL
I8TEL
T6TeL
[A4ANA
6STEL

HSNYHUL

§T/81/9
ST/ZL/9

ST/CT/9
ST/2T/9
ST/2I/®
st/er/e
ST/ET/9
ST/TT/9

ST/2T/9
ST/2T/9

ST/21/9
sT/2T/9
ST/2T/9
ST/ET/9
ST/2T/9

S1/E1/%
ST/21/9

ST/2T/9
ST/TT/9
ST/ZT/9
sT1/21/9
S1/2T/9
SI/ZT/9
ST/ZT/9
ST/ZT/9
ST/21/9
s1/21/%
S1/21/9
ST/21/9
ST/ZT/9
ST/ZCT/9
ST/2T/9
S1/2T/9
ST/21/9
aLva

ST/2T/9

# o/d

dDIAI0 A¥ATD
HIVEd 40 FDILSNC

SEAI¥A JdYH

SEIT4ANS HOIJJ0

SHITAANE FOI440

SHATECQ €80

TYOISAHd ¥50HODEE

MADT AYHAITHT TVEW XOHIOH

SNDIS A¥ ON
SHNOS

ONINIVAL SINTII

SL5EL DNYUA ILNAWAOTIWNA Fad
PILCZT SCA IWOD4ZAL
NOISSIWWCD SNINNYId
THLDETION SEEL

d34 T¥LEO0d ATHLINOW
INIYW TT¥LHE0d

YSSENYA 'SNIHAHLS
s

ao0d HLVANI

SINIHdU3DNIE

HOIYW ALNOCD STOT TI¥dV
s

g2384 Ldn

SHEL FOHOAIA
ESYHDUNA UHLYM AV
INIWHSINUYD
TEAOWEY ILIJITHD
4n aunoy

SFINE4ANS DNILVIISO
SHUTL Zi4A ua

ROILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

YILSIDEY MOHEHS
ALNNOD AZMOLS

IS % SOIEJYYD H0IS EHL NO

017 ' LOdEd YIVD ALISdI0

NI LOddd HOI440
ALNID HLIYEH TYNOILWANDJ0

d¥0D SWELSAS-IULON

OTT ONYLTNSNCD NOLJION
ALISHIAING NYHLSIMHLUON
T ON¥J FLVLS HL¥ON
HIV2IATN NYIOIUON

ONI VINSO4ITYS J40 TILXIN

ONT EDIAYHES TYDET WAVAHN

{QN¥E) AL 301d ¥IEAEN
T ALNOOQD 40 DOSSY VAVAIN
BIANSYHUL ATN

HLTYIH J0 AId A8N
NOILYXVL Ld3Q AEN

ALTIYE DITARA XLJddT AEN

SHDUNOSHY NVHOH 1d3a AIN

HATIOELANOD AEN
SANNQ¥S F 207d NIWAY AIN

SHOLOYA SSENISAY TYNOILVN

HYYMINYH TSNOHANOCKH

HQCONIA

ST/0T/30 ¢

oLves

69vz8

89veZ8
LovZg

29%Z8

59828
vovee
€378
29%Zg
19%28

09%zZ8

65%E8
a5v¥28
Lspee
A4
SEves
¥avZe

£9vZ8

[4:3k4:}
18324

05¥92¢

ebvee

HaEWNN
ADTIED

I2738J uny

STETEd :ON 3xoday




HETIY NYIJE 'JAWOHS (43 242

00°098'9 00°098°9 0BTEL ST/2T/9 NOISSES HALLYISIDZT
0737 QYYMOH ONY NYWHAHS 16728
TZ SHL'BFT 2T SPL BYT LSEZEL ST/e1/9 HONVIVE HOYEDdA CISEA
ONI SEDIA¥ES IYHOTD DHS 06¥28
9% LEZE'Y 809 2ETEL  ST/BT/S dOL £960-Lb8
EL TBT'9 Z&T1EL  ST/ET/9 SNOLLYDINOWWOD-ZTFS-252
16°¥8 TeTEL  ST/Z1/9 DILJA  00GL-L¥8
DNI SIOIANES IVEOTH DdS [:324°]
D€' SEL’E 0E°SEL'6 TETEL ST/TT/9 ZI2% AIL¥Y ££9T800000ANTIHY
VAH QINIFIEE SAYVH LINIVS 88%2Z8
EL FLE 8€°2Z0T E60EL ST/2TT/9 FTEYD ONIFIAM-ADOLS
SZ'6E Z60EL ST/ZT/9 ANVL SEI¥M JGIAIQ
0T LEE 6VTEL 51/21/9 SEITIANS SWI
ONI C0ddny LBFEZR
00°652 00" €€ S02EL  S1/2T/9 TOHODTV -100d
00922 S02EL ST/BI/S INIVd 90014 -100d
LYYW INIYE ONEY 9BEZE
00°€LE 00 ELE £0ZEL  ST/2I/9 INIVH -Nd3d SOLT
NI ONIJYDSANYT NIHND ONEH SEVER
SZ2°98¢'8E 52°98¢'ge S9ZEL ST/ET/9 SISSYHD S¢ vddAIs
27 &NO¥H ATHSUATYIAC ONEY ¥8EZ8
00°0T 00'0T 8¥ZEL ST/2T/9 SNINIVIL
IdTd NOIIWONAA YEWIY £8VES
0L's oL's 6ZTEL ST/21/9 HAIT FIIILLHE T0-69¥EST 19
NI FJIIT QEUANYLS ZONYITHY [4:3-44°]
TT'€LL°S 0070051 LZTEL ST/21/% $TOZ ENAC
TT €LY 'T §SeEL S1/81/9 ASNAAXT WY
DUTODETT LZTEL ST/2T/9 STOZ ENAL WYyd0¥d
ONI SHIDIIVYLS avd 18%28
00°006°T 00°006°T 89TEL  ST/ZT/% ST/ZT/S TTI4HE
YEMO4 ASVHIING 08¥%Z8
L3028’ L9029 FETEL ST/ZT/9 L 'Y0IdaY
INANEIILEY A7dWE SITdnd [ IR 24:]
00 oLeE 00" SL ZOTEL ST/2T/9
00 5L 82ZEL ST/TT/9 ONIYOLINOW Eu1d
00" 02T £EZTEL St/2T/9 U000 ANV WH¥TY NOISNUINI
ONI SHDIAEA NCILOFLOUE 8LvER
VL 06Y TL ¥LZ LOZEL ST/21/9 LNEWHS INSYD
£0°972 POZEL ST/21/9 INIWHS INIWD
I 0D HINYNIJ TYNOISSHIOUN] LLYZ8
LE'OBT'T L6 06T'T LOTEL  ST/ET/9 INAWNAYE ASYAT
(YET) TYHOID SIMOH XINLIA 9LFER
S0°98 $0° 98 86TEL  ST/EZT/9 aNnNIgd LISO4Ad
ANUYd ¥ WONIT ‘NEdId SLYPEE
00 0E¢E 00 0ZE L¥ZEL  ST/TT/9 SZFITAANS SWA
ONI TOYINOD OISAHA PLYES
007207 00°20T £0TEL ST/TL/9 ST0Z '€ ENNC-TZ AVH
¢ OTEONY INIYLAEd £LTEG
007 0%0'T 00°0%0°T BYIEL ST/ZT/9 ONIddYW NIW THLISIA
S NHOL 'HSI¥¥Yd ZLPEG
00°'8%S 00'66T £8TEL ST/21/9 YZOUNIW
00" 66T £BTEL S1/21/9 SHEANY
00° 08T €8TEL S1/21/9 HNOONYHA
ONI ‘INH ALISUEAIND Mu¥d TLFZ8
D0 0TT 007 02T DOTEL s1/21/9 AOYRDIS TYNOLLOERIA
TYICL INNOWE #SNYEL qLYA # 0fa NOILAI¥OSIA ADIOANI JOANTA WREWN
ADEHD MSEHD
ST/ZT/5 NHLSTIHIU ADFHD ST/0T/90 : @3eq uny

L @beg LLNDOD XAIHOLS STETHd :ON 330dsy




oorong $QTEL ST/2Z1/9

00°16 30TEL  ST/21/% HINNVYE SNOAZIANTY ONFM
Y90 OTT SEIYLSAANI ADITS 96928
00 0L 00" 0L SOTEL ST/2T/9 ST0Z '€ ENNC-TZ AWH
¥a3d TYNOLLYN HIYLS €IATIS G628
00" 0ST 0008 66TEL ST/TT/9 COOMAD0T TOYINOD L1534
00°00T 66TEL ST/ZT/9 TOYINOD 1534
ONI TTO¥INQD ISZEd ¥yddIs ¥EvZ8
G9'ESK 6 L6 E0T €6TEL ST/2T/9 SLHOIT 4I5S HD 40 NMOL
9% ' LTZ £ETEL 5T/21/9 ASHEEIL LHOTEMIEYS 0192
[ARE A €6TEL SI/21/9 Jdd a¥ TI0L 00T
ST LS €6TEL  ST/20/9 ¥ 40 € /1S NOING 09T
ZEEE €6TEL  ST/ET/S ¥U¥d ¥ HONWY I¥™d Q00T
[4aa4 £6IE€L  ST/TT/9 ¥Y¥d HOA qd FUIdWT TPIZ
$0°S¥E £6TEL  GT/ZT/9 ¥ IINO AM NOANWD 0Z%
007021 £6TEL  SGT/ET/9 g IINO AYM NGANYD 0E%
2L 85 £6TEL ST/ZT/9 I8 D N 981
£2°19L £6TEL ST/2T/9 ¥ N¥Ed SO0LT
£978ET £6TEL ST/E2T/9 a9 HONWY IdEd 008
€ 21T E6TEL SI/ZT/9 SIHSIT IS D § TE£S
Z6°00T £6TEL ST/2T/9 SIH2IT 1S O § Z%¢
09 TL £6TEL ST/T1/9 SIHOIT LS O N 9LT
597604 £6TEL ST/2T/9 dSNOHI¥A0D 1S d § 92
P8PSS’T £6TEL S5T/21/9 NOANWD ETIIN XIS 0ZTT
BETOL E6TEL ST/TT/9 LOGHEI HS LINO IS NIV
zGvee £6TEL ST/2T/9 (DNINIWEL) IS O N T%T
LT PEE £8TEL ST/ET/9 SHE¥IL I8 D N
-£8 €L EGTEL ST/21/9 MYYITIVE IS NOSHUWD
PIS9T £6TEL ST/2T/9 oA LINN IS O 8§
TZ'9L €BTEL ST/21/9 LHOIMT "I¥d /E000LAC IS 2 S
$% 19 £6TEL ST/21/9 LS O TLE/DA LINQ I8 O S
zZ8'¥9 CETEL ST/21/%9 FOVEYD LS € § $OT
8¢ ¥¢ E6TEL S1/21/9 LS NOLLNS
zZE'TE £6TEL s1/e1/% qE¥d DA 18 3 N 502
¥6' 0L €ETEL ST/2T/9 whAa Q¥ GNIAVE IVINVGS 00§
L9 99T £6TEL S1/21/% OWISYD 18 D § 12
Y 98L €6TEL ST/21/3 INTd ¥LM 1S HLNOS M00T
£€° 12 £6TEL S1/21/8 NUYd SNAWTTID WYS 06%
80 TI5T £6TEL ST/ZT/9 dLDD  ENHWHID WYS 009
0E"8vL £6TEL ST/21/9 TI¥D  TRE AMH S0 TT6
L9 %ET E6TEL  ST/Z1/% 0§ 1§ D 5 502
89821 E6TEL ST/ZT/9 08 1§ D § €02
05° 06 E6TEL ST/TT/9 ¥ad IS D § 102
68 LYE E6TEL ST/2T/9 2/1 dOHS Q¥ TIOL 0071
TT 6€T E6TEL ST/ZT/9 2074 dd TIOL 01T
vEIS E6TEL ST/ET/9 507g Q¥ TIOL 0€T
16" 84 E6TEL ST/TT/9 dOLSLSEY IS 2 N I8¢
85" 201 E6TEL ST/ZTT/9 LINOD IS 2 N 6%T
by ZL E6TEL ST/2T/9 SEY ¥ IHOIMMINYD Z192
15'522 EGTEL ST/ZT/9 7 IS A¥M NOANYD 1€V
vews E6TEL ST/TT/9 FSHAWNG EHOIUMIMYD 0192
1€ 8L E6TEL ST/ZT/9 IHOIT LS SYINOCISSIWHOD 2§
BE 626 E6TEL ST/ZT/9 SIHDIT LS ALID YINIDYIA
0D ¥HMOd DI4IOVWd VI4EIS £6%EB
0081 05'CT TOTEL ST/2T/9 ST0Z '0&+4 AWW
05" L ¥OTEL ST/TT/9 §I0Z '€ INADL-TEZ AWK
TY.LOL LNOOWE #ENVUL TIVA # 0/4 NOILETE3SAQ FII0ANI FOANIA AEEHON
ADIHD ADEHD
S1/21/9 YWALSIDAY ADIHD ST/0T/90 33eq uny

8 abeg AILNAQD AZHOLS STETHA :oN 3xodey




3]

GO0 E6L

£6°28L

08 STT'1

69 0€5°¢C

veTeoc
00" £€8°ET

6L TP0"8S

90'695°T

EE'0¢
0T 28

0% T3¢

05 z8¢

TYLOL

MOEHD

abeg

EEARANY

00" €6
00°00L

PP BZL
25°€
ZL"0E
[420 343
6B 0L

00°6€
00 g6L
Q08052
0SS 1T
000t

29799

29795

ZE" 09

21611
26°5¢£2
c¥ 80T
(AN 5 4
ZB 68T
CL'BTT
c9°¥¥S
2T 61T
98" %09
6T 0%
087 0€ET
Z1 61T
96" ¥Z1
8% E¥T
0¥°812
96° P21

vz g0z
00'££8°ET

00 %17
L' LEZD'BS

£¥ " 9ve
£9°zge

£E'0€E
QT Z9¢

0% 98¢
00°SL

05794
00°ST

LNOCHY

ETZEL ST/ZT/9 S/M- N¥Ad SOLT

0TIEL ST/2T1/9

OTTEL SI/ZI/9 ST0E ‘€ ANAL-TZ AYH
0EEZEL ST/ZT/9 ada’ dWEn ¥OSNIS ‘1IE5-T100d
0EZEL ST/ZT/9 300714 -100d
0€ZEL ST/2Tt/9 WACIETE WIV-T100d
0ETEL ST/21/9 YIS 0 ADEA-T100A
DETEL ST/ZT/38 HHAMOI QdT-T00d

6Q0TEL S1/21/9
GOTEL ST/TT/9
60TEL ST/21/9
60TEL ST/2T/9
60TEL sT/T1/9 ST0Z ‘€ HANNP-TT AVR

80TEL ST/ZT/9
LTEZEL ST/ZT/9

LIZEL ST/ZT/9

LTEEL ST/ZT/9 1§ D zLe
LTZEL ST/EL/9

LIEEL ST/2T/9

LIEEL ST/2T/9

LTIZEL ST/21/9

LTZEL ST/2T/9

LTZEL  S1/21/%

LTEEL  ST/21/%

LTZEL ST/E21/5

LTIZEL ST/Z1/9

LTZEL ST/2T/9

LIEEL ST/ET/9

LTEEL ST/2T/9

LIEZEL S1/2T/9

901EL ST/2T/9

LIEEL ST/2T/9

FLZEL ST/2T/9

9ZTIEL ST/Z1/9 L¥044Ns
LOTEL S1/21/% STOZ '€ HNNL-TZ AWW
$STEL  ST/2T/9 QIATHDEN XYL ALYAd0Ed
FLIEL  ST/21/9 HINYINAWY SYTRN0T
BLTEL  ST/2Y/% FONVINAWY SSITM
ELTEL ST/ZT/9 SNOILVDILSEANI
TIEEL ST1/21/9 1¥0ddNS WOLYHEEOD AVW
0SZEL SI/ZI/9 SHITdANS DNINYATD
09ZEL ST/2T/9 S3ITdANS ONINVATID
90TEL ST/2T/9 SYENNYE NOTLYANOCE % THD
90TEL ST/ZT/9 HIOWEd EILVA
#SNWUL TIWA # 0/d NOILAT¥OSHA FOIO0ANI

ST/21/9 NHALSIOHAHE MOFHD
ALNNOD XFHUOLS

LNIWTAOYAWI TYIENED ILHIL

SAQHEMOD FNOLSEWOL THL

SI00d0¥d 1004 HOI¥E4NS

SESTAHIING MVEd NNS

WHLLSAS ¥ELYM 0D IS
d4IYEHS 0D L8

{DA)YALNID JQINEE 0D IS
LOTYLSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S

ZONYINHWY 02 IS
47 WNALDE4S LNIddsS

ONTI SHDIAYES ALITILN dHdF

III 0 DINTWOd 'ENOTIVAS

AOANTA

ST/0T/90
STeTdd

8Qses

Losee

20seg8

£0s¢g8

Y0SZ8
£0528

¢0sEs
10528

oosze
3241

86ves

L6V ER

WHEWAN

AOEHD
S1eq uny
oN 3aodey




9T LEB 60T TYLOL SHOAHD

68'92T ST LL LEEEL ST/2I/9 HONHYM INVEQAH-M30LS
97 6% LZEEL  STI/TT/9 ATAAIN-HIANIL YALEM M4
00 ATddNS VAYAIN NEILSEM SZSE8
007591 00°02 ZEEEL ST/CTT/9 WH0JIT0D TLL
00 S¥T Z2ZTEL ST/2ZT/9 g9¥D OYO ILL'ITCY TLL TV
49T TYINIWNOYIANT NIZLSTM Y2528
05" €5T 05'€ST SSTEL s1/e1/e STE0"9LT SEN ONILSHL ¥NG
YAYAEN ‘ALNAOD TOHSYM £2528
68 E€6L'T 68 E6L'T LOZEL §1/21/9 ST0Z AVM STYIH COOMDOT
A¥IS HOINES ALNOOD HOHSYM 22828
16 %012 16 %01°2 ¥ZLTEL ST/TT/9 A8d010Y/SEYT
HENCHOD QO HOHSYM 12528
TLT9LT 116 OETEL ST/2TT/S T000 L¥OBTO0 OF
09191 GETEL SET/ZT/9 HIATLEY T000 LP08¥P0 OF
ONI ‘NYTId HDIA¥ZS NOISIA 0Z5Z8
00908 00908 TSEEL ST/ET/9 SWIOAINN TYNOSYHS
adn SANVTHOIH YINIDMIA 61528
00°0F6°¢E 00°TET'T LITEL ST/21/9
00°2S LITEL ST/ZT/9
00°050'T LITEL  ST/TL/9 SAYA L TE-6 AWNW
00-959¢ LTTEL ST/21/9 STOT ‘€ INNL-TZ AWA
00°082'1 LITEL S1/2Z1/79 IST AYH
ONI S5¥N0L ALID VINIDNIA 81528
05°€6% '€ 00'5%0°T 9TIEL ST/ZL1/9
0008 9TIEL ST/21/9
00°'0ST 9TTEL ST/21/¢9 STOZ ‘€ HENAL-TE AVH
05 6ET 9TTEL S1/2T/9
D0 ELD'E 9TTEL ST/21/9
0D WY EEADNYL ® WINIDUIA L1828
007 00T 00" 00T 0%zeL  ST/2T/9 aAd MDOLSHOD
ALIDOTEA OHAIA 31528
$6°LIZ L6°9 STTEL S1/21/9 N¥OHTING Y0 SEIUILILVE
L6°S STIEL  ST/ZT/5 SEAIND AOLISIA
00" ST STTEL ST/2t/9 CHONHLLY HINWIZA "3
000z SITIEL ST/ZT/9 LIS0d NIJ0 MAIANHINI "W*Y
00°'0LT STTIEL ST/ZT/9 HTEEANDOW
DLJA STSZ8
00049 00°0L9 S8TEL ST/21/9 DONINIVEL ALNAET
NI SEIYIDOSSY ? YELIW NYA [A%:14°]
00099 00°09 9IZEL  ST/2T/9 STOZXL TYMANIY "TYONNY
00009 SZEEL  ST/ZT/S IdEg ‘onv ‘e
(DA} FDIALOLSO4 SN £15T8
9 ELE 00° %11 0zZzZEL ST/21/9 WOCYULSEY HoA
00" %TT 0ZZEL ST/2T/9 WOCULEEY IW
Y9TSET ZTITEL ST/2T/9 ALIOS WI¥0d SANNCUSIAYAS
N J0 SEDIA¥AS ILIS TALINQ [AR:T4:]
00°528 00's28 STZEL ST/21/9 LgEA FIYHIONS
DT WAVAAN Jd0 ALIWMOJING 11528
58°'89 58°89 6LICL ST/21/9 TYLNEY JET000 HALYM JOIW
SAS UELIYM SMOAVEN EENOOUL 0TSE8
oo-eg DU EE TTTEL ST/21/9 STOZ '€ ENNL-T1Z AWM
ONI SHINLNHA-IFL 60528
00°50€ SEELT ETZEL ST/2T/9 WAI- [UEd SO0LT
TILOL LNLOWY HSNVUL TIVA # 0/2 NOIXAIHDIGHU HOIOANI HOaNdTA UITHNN
ADIHD ADFHD
ST/21/9 WILSIOHL ADTHD ST/0T/90 : @3eg uny

0T @beg ALNAOD AEIQLS SIETEd :oN 3Jxoday




HENQTSSIWWOD

I TIOLLER[OD

SUBY kgt 1 A8 TS

3L¥a NOTLVZIUCHINY QNY MITATY A0 INIWISAITHONAOYV

Zz'E£e0’s +T®I0L pPIeDs
22 E£20'S

86° 9P 8% ST/2T/9 SHITIANS BONVY TOO00ET-£TEE

00 %8 £8% ST/EZT/9 80 ®OIZAQ SNE OS £T6%98BET

00°61T £8% ST/ZT/9 185G YLHALS £99TT08BET

00°SL £8% ST/2T/9 15 1l LEESLLSET

B6'62ZT £8% ST/21/% YHELIYE SdnN bi# NOILVLS 2E0PS0

00°0ST SLY ST/21/3 NELIIHM -S1/82/5 dANOD u¥NA

70 8907 SLy ST/ZT/9 NILLIHM-ANQD OD¥N  ST/0T/L SHNITHIVY MS

0ot PT [4:3 ST/21/9 ONINYYd LHO4¥IV ONFY-YILIUMG

£ QLT SLY ST/2T/9 A4YLS SNOIW¥A/M OIN 'THd @ DATE WYAL/MA

00°§2 Sty ST/2T/9 8T/9 SIW  154%9 YHHNN/ANSOHSO

LS TTT 9Ly ST/ZT/9 SATYULS YEIERYD d¥H T UBBEETIC-90TH QEO

88°6€2 9Ly ST/21/9 91/91 1405 450a¥ OTEACYEETBEO0AVE THO

S¥°Z8E 8% S1/2T/9 SETHALLYS ISVL 0% AVN

LG FOT SLY ST/ET/9 AMOTd XTIANDDM/ISTUOTA  $TAI IS LOLPT/NIVAD

86 BT [4:34 ST/21/% HDIV¥d HAId-T00d SAMOT-MNOSYL

0001 LLy ST/Z1/9 JILYM QETLLOE SHLIIWS HYOWAVE

L EET EfAY ST/2TI/9 £2/9 SYD AIUIAYW/NYWIID

8L VL SLY ST/2T/9 92/S5 S¥D 6IT# SNOSAIVL/NYWIID

8%’ 0¢€ SLY $T/2T/9 /9 S¥D LLYD NEATOD/NYWIID

L0 98 8% ST/2T/9 aNVLS YOLINCW T¥Na

00°9T LPPT ST/2T/9 HSYM ¥YD  OHNISSOND SEENNIM ad

00" 82 LYPT ST/21/9 XL OINOINVY NYS HIATUAHAIYVY 0S5 aa

LL'BE LYPT ST/2T/9 XL OINONY NYS av2 IVHOTdIQ OS5 aa

L9 62 LYY s1/z1/9 W¥d MAOX MEN D0d a3y aa

¥6'92 LFHT ST/E1/9 MOLISIA ¥Od SOVE HSVAEL TAYWIYY MD

0008 LEFT ST/2T/9 ¥¥v¥d SINDJOd SHHIIMANYS SAIANYD SAEE MD

00°'0€ 8LY ST/21/9 S20avd SWYN COUYH -NIAIN'D

0L €T LLy ST/ET/9 SUELLET QEIJYI¥ED  1IS0d $N INSNYIHODAGD

00° %821 SLY ST/ZT/9 NILLIHM-INOD OJ¥N ST/0T/L EIV NYDIHZIWY

L6 TR £8% ST/ZT/9 €X DIN MAINOY SSATIUIM

: LNEWAYE (QUYD GYISNTWWOD INC STITaM (4]
TYLOL LNOOWY #ENTEL, qrva NOYEEI¥DSHT # EJIOANI LdIC-ANNI HOANIA YHEWAN
fatiyse) od
HALSIDEY dIVD ASYHOUNA ST/0T/%0 ¢ 823eqg uny

T sheq ALNQQOD ARUOLS L508%58d ioN 3jxodey




YENCISSINWOD

HIATIOULAWOD
oy PR

qLYq NOIIVUZIHOHLOV ANV MHIAZRY A0 INZWIDAITMONADY

00°000°'9 TYLOL SHMOEHD CHJAL
FT/L1/9 007000°9 ONT SHINNOD bgsge
0S/AM3WI MIYMEAIS [4 44 00°000°9 ZPEDT SI02
ROILII¥DSET HIDIOANT aIva TYLOL LNOOWY IWYN WOaNdA #TUODEY YYEX YIEWONN
AOHHD  ¥OEHD ’ IVOSId ADEHD
HILSIDEY SADEHI QIdAL ST/LT/90 : ®3wq uny

1 abeg ALNLOOD XIYOLS 06€T8d oM 3x0dey




T

007 5¢

69 9L

S8'¥it
TE'98L T

S6'LE8

¥0'PLE
vo-oog

0009

00 0ST
96'EZ¢
TI1° %6

395 8¥%

TP 922

g0t
60°6ET

Q0" 0¥S"TIT

00o0o’otT
0L EST’9%
IYLOL
ADHHD

sbeg

Q08¢

9T ET
96°ttL
19°5¢
98°¥8T

S8'v1ig
TE'98L°T
00 0LS
00708
S6°EST
00 %1
¥OTvLE
v0"oo0e

007 0¢€
00" 0¢€

00" 08T
96" 2¢
T1°56
L5'8¢€
666

0g°9g
6L70S
65" 5%
249701
LL'8
¥8'ET
0009

0201
60°6¢€T
00'00¢
00°002°T
00°008'S
00°000'T
00°008°T
00°0%5°T
00°000°0T

0L EST 9%

LMOQWT

LEEEL

88ZLL
88ZEL
8g9Z¢cL
8BZLL

9TELL
TEEEL
QgeeL
QGEEL
0STEL
05¢eEL
6¥EEL
QzELL

BbLeL
evees

cLeedl
6LTEL
SEELEL

TIFEL
teves

LBZEL
LBTEL
LBEEL
TLEEL
TLEEL
TLEEL
TLEEL

VEEEL
38TEL
LTPEL
LIPEL
LIvEL
LTFEL
LTFEL
LIVEL
Zoged

SZTEEL

#SHTEL

ST/98/9

51/92/9
S1/92/9
§1/98/9
ST/92/9

51/92/9
S§1/98/9
sT/92/9
S1/92/9
ST/9%/9
ST/92/9
51/92/9
S1/92/9

ST/9z/9
ST/928/9

ST1/32/9
st/sz/9
S1/52/9

ST/9¢/9
ST/92/9

ST/92/9
S1/92/9
51/92/9
ST/92/9
ST/9E/9
sT/92/°9
s1/92/%

§1/%92/9
§1/92/9
ST/92/9
S1/92/9
ST/98/9
ST/92/9
ST/92/9
ST/92/9
st/9e/9

51/92/9

aLva

S1/92/9

dDUYHD LSdL W0
HIDDOJL-WEE Y0y
TITAFY FTWTI-LESTTMA
HOLIMS-WOO¥Md qvod
HOLINS LOHANNOISIO-ZLIM
aNw¥ DIZIVHL

LLNE NS ' LEY TYES ¥dM-TLL

ST0Z ‘T AWM
ST0Z 'LT-¥ ENNL

ST/0E/6 - ST/T/L
ket

STOZ ‘LT-v aANQC

ONITIIE SWZ
FONTHHANODITHL

Sa%dI ¥Od LANYIINI

BE6TLHENSIAN ' 2956 E0TOTHOY

HO

dOHS

JOHS

AMANNYT ¥L LS
AUANNYT ZL LS
A¥CNOYT TL LIS

SL ¥0d STIMOL dJOHS

SXd1 1004

YHAJTHLE HOOTd-DdTH ANYL
ENNE SENEWHINYHNE

HNOC SLNIWNIDNYHNE

AN SLNEW

ANOL SINAWADNYHNE

HNNL SINZWEDNYHNE dTIHS
INOL LNEWEEUOW

SYIVAEE QUou HDA

'gHY FTIAIQ B HTIIW §

NOIIAIYDOSEd HDIOANI

YILGTIDHEY ADTHD
ALNOOD ATHOLS

ONI GD 110 AFTIVYA HOSYYD

H20¥d ITINZAOL ALIS NOSAVYD

SI¥¥d OLOY ALID IYLII4YD
SUEZINVDHO ITEYD

ONI H¥Id 5.NOINNE

SIMET LLODS ‘Tidydnd
ONI WYYIY OTIZUYOdNg

ALLYd 'EIAST

HYH0HET "qAGNES
AL INANGOTIATZT SAY
TA¥ES EONIUIZNOJHTIL L3IV

OTT IT ALITNIGHONW I3IV

dT ANYE0¥d SYDIHHWY

ONI 0DSTV
ONI MD20T ENIaTY

SINEY Y¥iS TIY

NI SWILEAS YINJI JIONYACY
DNIAVE 3 ONIAVYD OV

ONI SYAADW HIMYH %Y
JOANTA

ST/SE/90

5%628

LA A4

£pses
(A4

T¥528

0¥52e
6£sge

BESTB

LESZE
9£52Z8
SE5E8

veESTe

LESEE

2£s528
TESZ8

0ESZR

6ZS2%
82sgs8
LZSZ8
FFTWNON

ADFHD
@1vq unyg

STETEg ON axcday




ST'SLE°T 9GEEL S1/92/9 INAT SNINYVW Z0TE 130 DAN
Doa ‘ NEQENg G9528

L9°'82 L9°§2 EPEEL ST/92/9 da9L ONIUNSVIM
ANOL ‘NASQQ ¥95E8

00" €€ 00" €€ TEEEL S1/92/9 amioT Q4 HONYE Igdd 008
NOIIYN0Od¥0D 540 HSIA £9628

00°082 00°052 STIPEL ST/92/9 ATOL HIP MOHS AAVEYd HEd
g ¥OOWNY ‘OZHVWIAQ 29528

0Z°L8% 02 LBY STEEL ST/9E/9 SIAOTO FTIYLIN
ONI SMEAQTD TYOICGEW HSYA 195e8

00 8EL'E 00°668°T BZEEL ST/98/9 dAZIAYS

00'628°T 8ZELEL ST/92/9 EHATHS
AN ODSFY-SESTYAEALNT d%a 09528

0§'20T 05°Z0T SSEEL St/9e/9 dOHS LJ4IS WEINZD JOLISIA
ONI SEHYNEATE NMOXD 655E8

SE 10V 0o eve PSEEL S1/9%2/% §T102 'LI-% ENOL

$6°€5T FSEEL ST/92/9 ST0Z ‘T AYW
¥ OIAYLDO 'YISIUD BSSZ8

00°S%E 00°S%E 9I¥EL  S€1/92/9 HO¥YES dTD00S
+ WIAEW SLIAONOD FATLWHYUD L5528

£5'299 £5'239 Q6zEL  ST/S8Z/9 SHITAANS SNOISSIINOD
SNCIINTIOS SNE JESH OOLSOD 95528

00 EZ1T 00" ETT ESEEL S1/5%Z/9 SEOE 'LT-F ANOC
OTT TIIH dTI09 AIOLSWOD 55828

00 ZLS 0§'9¢T 9EEEL ST/9Z/9 aY ¥ENSSIWHOD DNINMYId

00281 £0EEL ST/92/9 SILMOdEY TYOSIA

00°6€ E0EEL ST/92/9 NOILYINIWONY

05 %12 96EEL S1/92/9 and J0 Jooud / NIWavend
(DA) FIDINQEHD HIOLSWOD 5528

S6°€ST §6'€ST PREEL ST/92/9 ST0Z 'T AWH
IYANNOd ANEIENED ADOLEWOD £5528

69°TEE'T ZT'ITY 90PEL ST/92/9 LNVED 1SS0LS ASA

LS 026 90¥%EL ST/98/9 LNYED TSS0LS ASA
DNI LSHHD ALINOAWWOD ZSSE8

0z zeL'z pg-zeL'e ZSEEL ST/92/9 dOLIS YNIYY SANNQUDEIVI
NOILDOHIENOD SNITIOD 15528

L9 €92 L9 €92 LTEEL S1/92/9 YANAEH LNSWHSINYYD
AN J0 EDIA¥AS NOILOZETION 0SSE8

PSZZT FSeEt SBZEL ST/92/9 LENJEINI/FNOHd DDIn
TH SNOIIYDINOWWOD FTLATHD 6%SZ8

00° 08T 00° 0% ZZheL ST/9¢/9 BESSO#ND HNSSIEY ‘NISNVH

00'00T ZTYEL ST/9T/9 BESSIH#ND ENSSIEY ‘' NYWAYHD
L (eF:is] 8¥seg

6L BLS 59'IZT TSEEL ST/92/9 Ad 9T/ST X'14dN3 WOOHLSIY

AR AN TSEEL s1/92/9 SEITddNS WOCHLSEY

¥6°5%T TIEEL s1/92/9 STAMOIYEAYd ¥ 41 TIVD
A14dN5 AYVLINYS TYELNID LYSES

80°09¢ 107 0% 60%EL ST/%2/% YATTOULIWOD TIIE INOHA

10°0% TOFEL s1/%2/9 T0000-L998302VE

00z QfEEL  ST/92/9 INY1d

E0°0ZT SLEEL sT/9e/9 TO000-LT9LE0EEE LOOY

10°0% BLEEL  S1/%Z/9 TO000-ZO0BLEQEYE LDDY
dIHSYANINYd 0DT1ID 9%523

ST TES ¥ 6T EFE’T 68zZEL  §T/92Z/9 8@ % INO-Md

ST 3089 68ZEL  ST/9Z/9 TSa-HOA

0z 2831 6HZEL s1/8z/9 T8a ¥ INO- Mg

TYLOL INNOWY #SNTHEL FIva # 0/4 NOILAI¥OSEd TDIOANT J0aNIa HIFHAN
MDIEHD ADHHD
ST/9E/9 MALSIOEY ADFHD §T/52/90 * =3eg uny

2 abed ALNNOD AFYOLS STETE] QN Jx0dey




9% €ET 8EEEL S1/92/9 LINANOD ON¥ XOE NOIIONOLD

LT 8T¥ LEEEL S1/92/9 18D HSOH A"IOd-INYId "EMES
62792 LEEEL ST/92/9 WEANNIHL INI¥d 'EdId-100d
IOIAMES LICHYED LO4Ed SWOH YBSEZB
ShLSE 007871 LSEEL  ST/9Z/9
057587 LSEEL  ST/9E2/9 5102 “4T-% ENAL
67 €51 LSEEL ST/92/9 STNZ ‘2 AVW
OHDS a9y HINO0d OI¥OLSIH £gsee
00°5L9 00" 5LY 66EEL 51/92/9 9T/ST 0E€09 dd INIVK NNY
ONIDYWIONDIW INISEA HOIH 4244
65 9ET’T ¥5°850°T SLEEL ST/9T/9 SHITAANS SWA
08 5¢ GLEEL ST/92/9 SHYTddNS SWA
SZ°'ZS GLEEL ST/92/9 SEITAANS SKHZ
NIEHDS A¥NZH 18528
00°'09¢ 00 09¢ SOPEL S1/92/9 NYETD HOQTd/LEIHYD DOIW
NHOL “¥EWIEH 0852%
08 0%S 08 0%S STEEL ST/92/9 ALNNOD QYO0 ¥¥Ed ANod
277 SINTWISIANI 419 6LSTH
00°S¥0°T 00°S¥0'T £OPEL ST/92/% ¥OIYT LIFLCEd HOWOd DWHS
"¥ SEWYL ‘DDI¥D 8L5E8
LY ' TT% LY TTY SOEEL ST/92/9 SHENQIY.LLYE LNIWHSINGYD
0 ADNYN NYES LLEESR
92'08%'1T $%°T9 96TEL S1/92/9 SEAQTD-ADOLS
2% €9 96ZEL S1/92/9 SNSIS LIXEZ-T00d
0%’ 5EET 96ZEL S1/3T/% SEITAANS TYINOLINYD
YIS 9L4528
00" €05 00 £0S TBEEL S1/92/9 SYIVAEE 00 SL 1S
DNI ¥O0TD SLSES
NS S96°S 05°5%6°S DOVEL S1/92/9 SHOIAYES FATLVBTLSHFANT
'Y aQUYMAE ONIAOYI YLSZG
£6°' 08T £6° 08T FEVEL S1/22/9 FICY99#ANSIHY ‘TN LNEHIGNT
dld'HOVEAL ‘AANANS ‘dE47Ind £LSES
00°8TIZ L D0'BIZ L FEEEL S1/92/9 HAEHNTd MEN
D717 ‘SEIEN0SHEE SSTALEOL ZLSEZS
LENEA R0 93 TEQT S6ZEL  ST/9Z/9 15 ¥ DIE-MT
86 059 S6ZEL  ST/9Z/9 oFE - M1
071 ADYANT SYAXTI TLG28
v5LY FS'LS €6zEL  ST1/9E/9 aNNEEY 1IS0dd0 FIILEM
AIAYT 'NOSADYES DLSES
EEZ FEE'C ¥1'#5E ¥ETEL s1/92/9 SIYYd HEWNTd ¥YI0S
88 '¥ZS ¥EZEL  §1/92/9 SIYYd gWOTd ¥VIOS
05769 ¥6ZEL  ST/8Z/9 ENOINGO-T00d
00" BEE ¥6EEL  ST/S5¢/S SHAOX
[3ANRAT y6CZEL  S1/82/9 ADOLS HOA SAWYID
2y SEE’T YEEEL  ST/92/9 SI¥Yd 8WOTd ISIN
00-s8¢ PEZEL s1/8%/9 S1¥¥d ¥EONAIY FENSSHId
ONI SESTYdHIAINT NOSNOUI I 69528
§9°L6T £6'6TT LEEEL  ST/9Z/9 SLSFA DIZAVHEL
ZLLL Z6ECEL  ST/9T/9 SR IYELIVE/HIAAYISILE
ANTAROD TYNITLSYI 89528
EC"ZLT EE 00 6567 T SZEEL  ST/9Z/9 TYES =490
€0 LTE TE 6TFEL  ST/92/9 IDENCYd WEMES NOILDIASNI
ONIYHEINIONG LSAM ddva L9528
2L LE 96°ST T6ZEL S1/92/9 HAYTH-ZTHTSUS
91" 1¢ T6ZEL ST/92/9 FATYA NVAXT-GEZPILI
ONI AT440S OINY LIOITTH 99528
9T SLS'T
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNTUL HLYA # 0/4 NOIXLATYDSEd HIIOANI HOANTA ATTRAN
ADEHD ADEHD
51/92/9 YILSIDIY ADFHD ST/SE2/90 aj3eg uny

3 abed AINAOD ATEOLS STETEd :on 3xodsy




S6°€ST 69¢€¢cL ST/9E/9 BLLATIAE ‘DL STOZ ‘T AWH

‘YATIVILAY HONVY ONYLISOW L09E8
0008 jofo R34 0ZPEL s1/%e/9 8868LHND ANSSIHW'¥-9/22-S
00 0¥ B9EEL  §T/92/%
ODYVK  ‘ AHGHNKW 30328
00°009°¢ 00°009°¢€ 86EEL ST/92/9
I JYELOY ‘SIYION 50928
00°000°'0S 00°000°05 LIEEL ST/92/9
YALNNH MEHLIYW EYCOW P09Z8
BV EveT 6L EF LEEEL ST/92/9
69°66T BOEEL ST/92/9 COOMADOT YIEWYD
NI SNOIINTOS FOIAI0 OULIW £E0928
00" 89 0059 BLEEL  ST/9Z/9 FONIAAITY SSH¥d WISHL
N NHOD ‘SHWODOW z092Z8
BE 66T 86661 S9EEL S1/92/9
NIETHLYA ' SOTHIVH 10928
L¥ E¥E’E LY EvE'T PEEEL 51/92/9 ¥IAIA 00TXOOT
¥SIT ¥ LLODS ‘NOSIAVH 009zs
LE'OTIT'T LT 0TT'T 0PEEL §1/92/9 SINTWEDYIIAY AINVIIYM LY
ONI SEIVOIVEOIYT WW 1334
00°s82'2 00°582°¢ S9€€L ST/%¢/9 JANIVIEY ST0T X000
217 SINHAE HNTE GINOIT 865ZH
££'TE9’T £2°2z9°¢ ¥OLEL ST/92/% SNOISSIWWOY ITIHD
D1IT SINIAT H0TE aINDIT L6528
§6°20%'S S6°€ST EQEEL  ST/8Z/9 ST0Z ‘Z XYW
00°6F2'S £8ZEL  S1/8Z/9 WOESAW YIS MEOM IDINE
T ON 0D ENIDNT ALIIdIT 96828
0§'9TS‘1 05'91§'T E9EEL ST/92/9 YNAYY SANNOYOUIYY
HIWWYL ¥ A¥NYI ‘WALSAT 56528
00°000'6 00°000'6 T9€€L ST/92/9 2 J0 2z INAWAYE
ONI SNOILLONCO¥d SILNYT ¥6528
L8 € L8 € ZTEEL ST/92/9
NI SHDIANIS HNIT FOVADNYI £65CH
00°'08S 00°L9S 09¢EL s1/92/9 STOE ‘LT-%7 ENOL
0D0°ET 09EEL S1/28/9
¥ NYILSIHHD 'dETHOIIA [43:34:]
BT 06 8106 08€EL s1/92/9 LNEWAYAATAO ANNJTY
HOOH ’I¥0DJ4dHD 16528
56°98 5698 66ZEL §5T/92/9 SAWYID-FLY
27T gdr 06SE8
06 €91 087 €91 8TEEL S§1/92/9 ININVV2OT ELWWNI
4> DNILTASNOD GW ZIZL AWD 68528
ZZ6ET T2 6E1 9PEEL ST/92/9 THL SEITIANS ¥AMOL 0DSID
0177 @DVN0S TLI BESER
P£909'682 09" ZBS'Z8T PIYEL ST/9z/9 O¥d SNI VIT/0dd dI¥dN
PLIEED'L 65£EL S1/9E/9 WSI¥NOL DA
D7 ‘SELVISOSSY ¥ STIYONI L8SES
25T LB 1% 2 B6EZEL  ST/82/9 ONI¥-0 Ti
£S°LE 8BZEL ST/82/9 HWOFTOYLEd WHWOd oY -ELIM
8BS LS BEEEL St/92/9 FATYA MDHEHD-TLI™
A¥ES TYIMELSOANT JITOVITAH 98528
05°182 00°0ZT BGEEL ST/92/9 S162/10/8 -ST02/%2/L
05 ee TYEEL s1/92/9 LANYAINT zZL#ls
00" 6L TEveL ST/9E2/9 ZEEILHADANSSIAN ' INT SAIIH
ONI aNYEavodd Lods LOH S85T8
£8° €19 L6°GE LETEL ST/92/9 LESOTD LESHICI-T00d
TYLOL LNNCWY #SNIL FLva # 0/a NOILATIHOSHA EDTCANI HOGNZA HHHRON
ADFHD ADFED
ST/92/9 WALSIDIY ADAHD 5T/SE/90 @ 33eg uny

. =beg LILNOOD AHYOLS STETEd o 3xodeyw




g

06 LTIT

89°96T
55°'68
LT'826"8ET
000061

L8 55%

Q- 0peT
A TN

00°'599

Sg€°€Le

00 98%
86'861

85°L30°1

00" ZL
0G'sg

¥6°¥ST

00°§ZT
967 €91
057968 "¢
S6'E5T
TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

[4ARA
9L" 2
TS° 1
L9°1
9Lt
oorze
89°¢
16" €
1571
65°¢
00°2¢
0s°¢
0p-e8
89°'SET
S5°'6e8

LT 686 "BET
00700671

00°'¥82
LB TLT

00°0%e
Zb 9zT

00'S%¢E
g0rozge

00" 02T
§6°EST

00589
86861

0%"866
81765

00" z¢
og'se

96 %%1
86°6

007521
S6°E€ST

05°968'%

LNOQWY

80vEL
80vEL
80veL
80%LL
g0FEL
80¥EL
80vEL
g0¥EL
BUFEL
80FEL
aBTEL
Sgcel
S8EEL
FOFEL
TEEEL
BiveL
LOFEL

90€EEL
L0tEL

SLEEL
60€€L

£8ELL
£EB8EEL

FLEEL
FLEEL

ZLEEL
6TEEL

LZEEL
LTLEL

Serel
CECEL

I8ELL
TI8ZEL

EZEEL
0LEEL

082¢€L

¥ENVAL

ST/92/9
S1/92/9
§1/9¢/9
ST/98/9
51/92/9
ST/92/%9
S1/92/9
S1/22/9
s1/9z/%
ST1/92/9
ST/92/9
S1/92/9
S1/92/9
§1/92/9
ST/92/9
s1/22/%
s1/9%¢/9

ST/9E/9
S1/92/9

S1/92/9
51/92/9

ST/9¢/9
st/se/e

ST/98/9
ST1/92/9

ST/92/9
ST/92/9

S1/92/9
ST/92/9

S1/92/9
S1/%z/%9

sT/9z/9
S51/9Z2/9

§1/9z/9
ST1/92/9

St/9e/9

EL¥d

ST/92/9

# ofd

(D) HYIL

TOOMMDOT/INT A
NINOY/H37I09LdN00
JdTYAHS

danr

AATHEHS

SMECM DITaNnd

(oA) FAIJ

HAAWODHE

MHETD

SI02 ‘LI-% ANOD

ST0Z 'S ENALD

IDFL0Ud HOWOd DWWS -INIVE
d

TYNIE ST/T/¥ MOILVOITddY
S1/2ZZ/% 17I4d"

TTEHDLIN INIFWHSINIYD
INIRHS INAYO

DNINVETD MOANIM TYINNY
TYINTY ENIHOYUH #DYLS0d

SEITAdNS SHE
SEIT4dNS SHE

S10g "LT-7 3NOL
S10Z2 "1 AWW

ST0Z ‘8T-1 HMAC

ITEITVUYLE/AY0E NO dAALYM
LIROVII NOIS Ay

£960L#HD ENSSIEY
aEg HondL

VANSAVYD GIVOIGHW TI¥4dY
NOSTYHCW AIYDITAW TIddY

9T/ST TYMINTY DUN
S10Z ‘T AWM

NOIINGTHALNOD HDWOA ASVEL

NOLLAI¥DSIA JIIOANI

YHLSISEYE MOEHD
ALNOOD XEEQLS

QT NI SEDIA¥ES TYHOTO DdS

SONI ¥ILNIDLYY SAUYH INIVS
LYYW LNIYE ONEW
‘ZAQNYNYHEH - NEOVHSNIZR

ONI NOILDOHLISNOD g%0

WIMOZ HSWHIING

I 00 HONYNIJ TYNCISSHIOHT
BI¥HD 'NITNOd

ONI SEMOE AENLIJ

ONI ‘TOJLNOD OISAHA

d OTHDNY ' INIUIHI
OTT YIAEW LHOY4LIN0

ONI I0dEd 3DXIZJ30

OTT DNILINSNOD NOIMON
ONI HOIAYES 'IYDET YAYAIN

AL¥AIOUE SNTAYNS AFN

FELINID TYNOISHIT T¥dnd AZN
THSNNOD EATLVISIOAT AN
NOILVAYASNQD 4C Iddd ARN
ODVN

JOaNaA

s1/528/90
s1etad

LT9Z8

aToes
SEZ9ge
pEA A
£2928

[44:14:]

TZ9ZE
ogoes

6188

81928

L1928
91928

ST9Z8

visee
£1328

21928

TT9z8
0tr9zs
e0n9ce
8092¢
JITHON
ADEHD

i oa3ed uny
10N jzoday




¥5'avT £E6EEL §1/9z/3

N J0 SHOIA¥ES LIS QILINA 9¥92Z8
T 03¢ Z2Z°09¢ TTEEL ST/92/9 NOSTAN
D77 YOVAAN A0 ALIWICIINN S¥9Z8
00°29T 00°66 TEEEL ST/92/9
00° €9 ZEEEL ST/9%/9 ST0Z ‘LT-¥ ENAD
ONI SHENLNEA-IUL fAEA]
00°'000'¢€ 00°000°¢€ POEEL ST/92/9 YIVAEY /¥ ¥ FOUNENI TIVD
dWILYWEEHL £¥9Z8
00°'L68°T 00' €8T T6EEL ST/92/%9
DOTST9°T TEEEL S1/92/9 §10Z ‘LI-% ENOD
SAQEMOD HANOLSHWOL HHIL [44°F4:]
66°L8Z 66°'LBZ ETEEL  ST/9Z/9 SINYLIZINISIO TYCIDIWEED
ONI ONILIASNOD ¥VISITHL TH9ES
9% 0L 9% ' Q%L EELEL ST/92/9 SINATAIYVYD FASYL
TYNOILYNJHLNT dESVL 0¥928
BE 902 TE TSI TOEEL ST/9Z/9 HAYMADOHS -100d
L0'SS TOEEL ST/92/9 OYE AONYD'OWE AYIT-T004
SILoNCo¥d TO0d YOIdEANS GEYEZB
06'LES'T 0S°L6 06EEL §T/92/9
00°0ES'T 06EEL ST/92/9 ST0E ‘LI~% ENND
EASINAYIING NVAd NAS EELYA
007 0T 00°0T TPEEL S1/92/9 HONOIT AVA-S "0 aNNAxY
HSS0d dA"H0 ALNNCD AFUOLS LESEZR
S6°€ST S6°EST 9LEEL  §T/92/9 ST0Z ‘T AWM
SNIYINOOW "HY NI SAUYH LS 9£928
52 8% -t A:37 88EEL ST/92/9. ANOOYDNIVE ATAUYH
JITYTHS €D IS S£9Z8
009 ooz LBELL ST/92/9
00" ¥ LBEEL 51/92/9 STOZ ‘LI~% ANAL
IOTUISIA TOOHIS 00 IS YESZ8
00" LES’S 00" L6S’S EBEEL ST/92/9 HOM ¥NI¥Y SANNCUSUIVS .
SYEOM DITEARd QD IS €EITH
ST TLe'T 16029 PTEEL s1/98/9 SSIEM HILYWNI L¥0dSHYUL
ZE ¥E9 PTEEL s1/%2/9 S9IdM FLYWNI LYOJSNYIL
z0°9¢9 PIEEL sT/92/% SSIAM ALVANI ILYOJSNYAL
HONVINGWY 0D 1S zE9zZ8
00°'%2 00°ve 9BEEL  ST/9Z/9 SHITAANS DNINVIETD
III £ DINIWOd 'ENOTTYAS TE£9Z8
00 L%3 L 00" 26179 ZIVEL  S1/%2/9 9T/ST A4 SHSNEIYE AIVAAES
00 0E9 ZIVEL S1/92/9 9T/ST Ad YYANIIYD INIAT
00" 5e8 TIPEL ST/9T/9 AINC HI® TIYLENI HENNVE
VEU DTT SEIELSNANI MOIIS 0£928
05'2Z1 0§'2TTT TBELL ST/92/9 STOZ 'LT~% ANOD
Yad TYNOLLYN ELVYLS HIAATIS 62928
06°25 05'25 LLEEL 91/92/9 SI0g 'LI-% ZINOD
NITIY NYIdd ‘JYOHS 82928
24 %01 58°12 80%€EL ST/92/9 2L2A
BL" JOVEL 81/92/9 ONINNYTA
7572 BO0FEL St/92/9 1I
S0°T 80¥%EL ST/92/9 (DA) FHIA
€078 g0¥%EL ST/9e/9 WANOISSIWNOD
(TN 80%¥EL  ST/92/9 wa
€9 80%EL  ST/92/9 HOLYES5IA IYdLNED
LT 9 80FEL  ST/92/9% YOSSASSY
08°¢ 80¥EL ST/92/9 INFHIQTIAZA ALINAWWOD
TYLOL INOOWY #SNVYL 2LYd 4 o/a NOIXAL¥D8EA BDICANI VOANEA HASWAN
MDEHD ADHAHD
S1/9€/9 WVIILSIDEY ADITHD S1/52/90 93e([ uny

2 abed ALNOOD AZEOLS STETEd :GN 3xodsx




LETOLE TR TELOL SHUDAHD

00'908 00'902 6TLEL ST/92/9 C8 'OMIIN'HA 'I¥DIEI ' ANWATEZO
YT TYINSHNQUIANT NYTLSHEM £5528
DO"OEL'T 00" %9 ZTBEEL sT/92/%9 SEHONNT DIW 237
00'999°T ZBEEL S1/98/9 SEOIA¥ES LSIAS407T
SHIVIDOSSY ¥ dIATEMN 5928
ZI ETS'S ZI'E16'S DTIEEL  ST/9e/% qo0d ILYWNI
IDEIH0D 4O LA TLYLS UM 15928
00 0%6 ‘¥ 00 %961 S6EEL  §1/92/9 ST0Z ‘L1-% ANDD
0098 SEEEL S1/92/9
00°ZEZT'T S6EEL St/92/9
00°Z§ SEEEL ST/98/9
00'0S50'% S6EEL ST/92/9 SI0Z 'T€-6 AWM
00°95¢€ SEEEL ST/92/9 §T0Z '€ HENAL-TZ AWM
007002 SELEL ST/92/9 ST0Z 'T AWW
ONI S¥ENOL ALTD YINIDWIA 05928
00°T0S'¥ 00°L6E PELEL  ST/92/9
00°S%T PeELL st/9g/9
00 LLE R TEEEL ST/92/9 ST0Z “LT-% ANOD
00°2ZBL T PELEL ST/92/9
02 ¥¥ HEMOMIL ¥ VINISUIA [1Z:14:]
508 00'8¢ TOVEL ST/92/9 9TAd TYMANZWIVANNY 4G Ivd
(oA)  HOIAAOLSOd S0 8%92Z8
T0'LLS’E TO'TL9'€E GEEEL ST/92/% 6672PE-IOOY HSYET WIIJOD
YNIZE LNAWGINOE JYOINYE S0 L¥IEE
¥9° ST
TYLOL LNNOWE HSNVUL ALYT # 0/4 NOILJI¥ISHIA TDIOANY JOUNEA HIAWRN
HIEHD ) MDEHD
ST/92/9 UAISIDAY HDEHD ST/sE/90 : @3eqg uny

L ®bea LINNOD ATHOLS STtTEd ‘oN 3Ixodey




T

bLT90L'9

PE'90L'Y

TYIOL
dUeo

abeg

HATTOTLANGD

h: _ruaim&sw rF YR

LY 21T
9L PET
L¥ 08T
€6°ST0'T
S6°69%'T
£5'52
LETEZ
00’ sg
[ 28 14
ZE€'6E
00" 05%
09706
Z6°SET
002
69° 89T
6672
66'S
66" L
559021
4R A4
ET'65
SL'99
00'6¥
¥9 9t
00" 9¢
00" T¢e
00" 0¥
S6°FET
EF 6L
TE" €S
22 PET
]
ST es
¥6°01¢
05°ST
08°6TT
007 0L
0009
96°9
6% LS

LNQOWY

qLYA

NOTLYZI¥YOHLOVY GNY MITAHY J0 INIAWISAHTIMONIDY

€67
£6¥9
88v
£ET
£6¥%
Tev
Te¥
16¥
434
38Y
58%
(134
167
6%
LEY
Le¥
(A3
L6t
Ly
06¥
98¥
I8¥
88%
98%
88%
89%
88¥
88¥
96%
26%
96%
S67
Sab
S6%
se¥
St
S6v
sefb
06¥%
T6¥

#SITNIL

S1/92/9
st/9z/9
S1/92/9
ST/92/9
ST/9Z/9
ST/9e/9
S1/92/%
s1/38e/9
ST/92/9
st/9z/9
ST/92/9
ST/98/9
ST/92/9
st/ez/s
S1/92/9
S1/92/9
ST/92/9
ST/92/%9
s1/92/%
§1/8eg/s
ST/9%/9
S1/92/9
5t/92/9
ST/92/9
si/9z/9
ST/92/9
ST/92/9
S1/92/9
ST/92/9
5T/92/9
ST/92/%
ST/9¢/3
S1/92/9
S1/92/9
S5T/92/9
S1/92/9
51/92/9
S1/9%2/9
ST/92/9
ST/92/9

ZLYd

FTEYD ANV HOLYd dda1d

ABO WOD 154

JREGVAD ERYNG

s4n ‘OFAIA ‘AH T ‘W

OIOVY IENZEINYG JHO/JHA
HONGT SSENISAE

HONOT SSANIsng

AVYY FYTd -HEI IDYOOVE

ILYINTINO ad/INSUATHYL
92/9 ANOD WHHE

NILAAW HONOQT "IWANNY LT
SWAOIINN

UIEWNTI $0999XT
SLENDIL ETd4vd
'SENILEIW‘OA ¥Od HELWYM
B6'ET15 = ¢ X LINES

86 ET$ =Z X LINES
SAITAANS STUD / SYIVL
174405 1LO4dEd TIIH d109
2T/9

81/9 HIv9

SARYES 40 TI0E

0T/9 SHITEENS DIO
LIMNE - JO0S FLVWNI
SEINAANS ONINYITD
LINdS - ACCd FIVWNI

8 BAOTO ‘SENOD OIJJAWHL
I ¥AHOVETE OINOINY NYS
I ¥EHOWATE OINOLNY N¥S
I HFHOVITHE OINOLNY NYS
89229 XE ~HSYM UVWD
INOHd HIITTALYS

ANI MHINI®G

YASN SOYIL aW¥N

JJIH -89HY1d
NID TOCHMIDOT -LANYHLNI
H¥LE D § TLL -LEINMEINY

YELLET dEIJILIED
SEITLSIN a3¥V¥NoEdIT

NOILILdI¥DS3aa

HALSIDIE THYD ISYHIUAd

ALNNGD AFYOLS

2Z0T8EE008

TPLLGSEDT
€SZB0SL-SBTERTL-STT
EIES60

ESLLTE-CH

L8 2IAIOVd-YLLHYNS
TAW TYNIDTEO-YILEUAS
YIV NYOIYIWY - YLLEUNS
EOVIS0d T.CAY Yaos
NMYaF -LSTY FDYIVd /Md
TIYA MIV ME/ANUOES0
9 ™UHTHO

ATIOM MIOM~-NIAZNKW
ANT-NIAINH
NIINIHdLAADLL MMM TF
LIDIYL ay

SENOLI Id¥ O3

SINOLY TdY a¥
SCTYZIOSH ANI

LOdEd dWOH EUOWAWH
AIYIAYH SYD/NYWIID
HEJTOH SYH/NVWIID
STTTI0 YANIAYD

OFIN LAVWTYM/NIYI
SHLING $T9T90 NESOQ
WYTIOd STRT90 NESOC
SHITWS STS1920 NES0OU
PEEELT - NMESOO

uada ada

q¥d SYXEL da

NNI MOILJWYH aa

SCUDSHEANNIM -NIAIN'D
L50davYou ~NMIAEN D
LOdEAIITALC -NIAHN'D
QYUYW -NIAEN'D
TIOLSOVTS ~NIAEN'D
LIY -NIAEN'D

LLY ~NIAEN'D

TOWLSCd I¥INVIHIONG
LG WIMS-HIDNITATEE
LNIWAYS

# EDIOANI IJHI-UNNJ

+TB3I0L PILDx

QU¥0 TYIDATHHOD ANO STIEM i3]

HOGENEA HAGHON
o4
ST/¥E/90 ¢ @3vg uny

L50875Hd oN uuommﬂ




4

TLLOL
jak-L-fo)

abeg

LNOOWY HSNYEL

qLYQ

NYWIIYHD
NOILdIdDsEA

YILSIDTE QYYD FSYHOEND
ALN{IOD AJUOLS

# EOIOANY Igaa-anNnd

HOANIA

ST/%2/%0
LE0BYSHA

HIERAN

24
33eq uny
oN 3xodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/7/15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners® meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney
8. Reviewed
X € Head Department Name: Community Development

@gkCo/un v Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey County @nmmunitp Bevelopment
Buginess o)

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 29, 2015

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the July 7, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

“EAEEEOW R

CCl

ROSENDIN ELECTRIC ~ Contractor / 880 Maybury Road ~ San Jose, CA (elect. contractor)
RENOWN HEALTH URGENT CARE - General/ 420 USA Parkway (Urgent Care) TRI
APPLIED SOIL WATER TECHNOLOGIES - Contractor / 56 Coney Island ~ Sparks (engineering)
HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL — Contractor / 1610 Kleppe Lane ~ Sparks (equipment rental)
LOBO CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3700 N Virginia ~ Reno (contractor)

SIERRA ROOFING SUPPLY - Contractor / 5900 S Lake Forest Dr ~ McKinney, TX (contractor)
LRG CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 2215 Driscol! Drive ~ Reno {(contractor)

QUALITY PLUS SVCS — Contractor / 2215 Renaissance Drive ~ Las Vegas (contractor)

A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV — General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 6, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve first reading of Ordinance 15-266, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a procedure for
permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects and providing for
other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Ordinance 15-266.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.165,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan that
designates corridors for the construction of aboveground utility projects that is consistent with any
transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the continuity of transmission
corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of adjacent jurisdictions, and that is
consistent with any Bureau of Land Management resource management plan.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-266

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes ___ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Wunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~r—
L e

Agenda Item No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the Storey County master plan process. In
addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing body to establish a process for the issuance of
permits for aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects. If the project is
located in a master plan aboveground utility corridor just a permit is required. 1f the project is
outside of a master plan aboveground utility corridor a special use permit is required. A special
use permit is also required for the construction of a renewable energy generation project with a
nameplate capacity of 10 megawatts or more. This ordinance provides for that process.




Ordinance No. 15-266

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects
and renewable energy generation projects.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable
energy generation projects and providing for other properly related matters.

Recitals

As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.165,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan
that designates corridors for the construction of aboveground utility projects that is
consistent with any transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the
continuity of transmission corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of
adjacent jurisdictions, and that is consistent with any Bureau of Land Management
resource management plan. The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the
Storey County master plan process. In addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing
body to establish a process for the issuance of permits for aboveground utility projects
and renewable energy generation projects. This ordinance provides for that process.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does
ordain:

SECTIONI:

17.12.064 P

ublic utility uses-Issuance of permit for utility projects.

A. Any aboveground utility project, which is planned to be located in an overhead
utility corridor identified on the master plan, must submit the plans for the project to the

Draft 7-6-2015 1




planning department. The director of planning must review the plans and if the director
determines the plans are complete and the location is within the master plan designated
corridor, the director may approve the project.

B. Any aboveground utility project that is located outside an aboveground ufility
corridor identified in the master plan is required to have a special use permit. In
addition to meeting all the general requirements for a special use permit including a
public hearing, the special use permit must not be approved unless it meets the following
additional criteria:

1. The construction of the aboveground utility does not conflict with any existing or
planned infrastructure or other utility projects.

2. The board determines that the proximity of the proposed corridor to any school,
hospital or urban residential area with a density greater than 2 units per gross acre is
acceptable.

If the aboveground utility project is on federally owned land, at the beginning of the
federal review and permit application process, the applicant must have a pre-application
meeting with the planning department. The applicant may submit, as an application to
the county, the appropriate documents related to the environmental review by state and
Jederal land management agencies. If the applicant is required to apply to the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada, the copy of the application is required to be served on
the county, pursuant to NRS, will constitute the environmental documents that make up
the application fo the county. '

C. Any renewable energy generation project with a nameplate capacity of 10
megawaltts or more is required to have a special use permit and must a permiited use in
the zone where the plant will be located.

D. An applicant for the issuance of a special use permit for the construction of any
utility project or for the construction of a renewable energy generation project with a
nameplate capacity of 10 megawatts or more who:

1. Believes that the decision of the planning commission or governing body fo
approve or deny the applicant’s application was not timely; or

2. Disagrees with any conditions imposed by the special use permit issued by the
planning commission or governing body; may, in the manner prescribed by the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada by regulation, petition the Public Utilities Commission of
Nevada to review the decision of the planning commission or governing body.

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015.

Vote: Ayes Commissioners

Draft 7-6-2015




Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Atlest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 7-6-2015 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 7, 2015 Estimate of time required: 2 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

L. Title: Resolution 15-429 Tax Rate Levy 2015/16
2. Recommended motion Approve
3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher

Department: Administrative/Comptroller
Telephone:

4. Staff summary: Annual Resolution to Approve Tax Rate Levy for the 2015/16 fiscal year.
S. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-429

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptrolier

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
e e

Agenda Item No.




RESOLUTION 15-429

TAX RATE LEVY

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners in and for the County of Storey,
State of Nevada did hold a public hearing on the 2015/2016 tentative budget for
Storey County and,

WHEREAS, the resources, expenditures and required tax rates were
reviewed and approved at that public hearing and,

WHEREAS, the approved resources, expenditures and tax rates were
submitted in the 2015-2016 final budget for the County of Storey, State of Nevada,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of
Commissioners in and for the County of Storey, State of Nevada in accordance with
NRS 361.460, intends to levy the following tax rates following certification by the
Nevada Tax Commission.

GENERAL 1.7719
INDIGENT MEDICAL 0100
INDIGENT ACCIDENT 0150
YOUTH SERVICE 0045
CAPITAL ACQUISITION 0500

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 474 5446

TOTAL COUNTY 2.3960
REFERENCE ONLY

SCHOOL OPERATING 7500
SCHOOL DEBT 1447
STATE 1700

TOTAL TAX RATE 3.4607




RESOLUTION 15-429

Passed and Adopted this 7th day of July 2015, by the Board of County
Commissioners consisting of three members.

THOSE VOTING AYE:
THOSE VOTING NAY:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman
ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD




RESOLUTION 15-429

TAX RATE LEVY

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners in and for the County of Storey,
State of Nevada did hold a public hearing on the 2015/2016 tentative budget for
Storey County and,

WHEREAS, the resources, expenditures and required tax rates were
reviewed and approved at that public hearing and,

WHEREAS, the approved resources, expenditures and tax rates were
submitted in the 2015-2016 final budget for the County of Storey, State of Nevada,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of
Commissioners in and for the County of Storey, State of Nevada in accordance with
NRS 361.460, intends to levy the following tax rates following certification by the
Nevada Tax Commission.

GENERAL 1.7719
INDIGENT MEDICAL 0100
INDIGENT ACCIDENT 0150
YOUTH SERVICE 0045
CAPITAL ACQUISITION 0500

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 474 3446

TOTAL COUNTY 2.3960
REFERENCE ONLY

SCHOOL OPERATING 7500
SCHOOL DEBT 1447
STATE 1700

TOTAL TAX RATE 3.4607




RESOLUTION 15429

Passed and Adopted this 7th day of July 2015, by the Board of County
Commissioners consisting of three members.

THOSE VOTING AYE:
THOSE VOTING NAY:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman
ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD




May 8, 2013
Via U.S. Mail

Marshall McBride

Jack McGuffey

Storey County Brothel Licensing Board
P.0.Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Re:  Independent Contractor Work Card Appeal — Carmen Rivera
Dear Messrs. McBride and McGuifey,

Cash Processing Services wishes to sponsor an appeal by Carmen Rivera
regarding the denial of her application for a work card by the Sheriff’s Department. 1
request this appeal be placed on the agenda for the next meeting of the County

Commissioners.

The Sheriff denied my work card on the basis of my failure to put down correctly
my list of prior arrests. Ms. Rivera will be represented by Courtney Forster of the
Gunderson Law Firm. Ms. Forster will present the grounds for Ms. Rivera’s appeal.

Your consideration in this matter is sincerely appreciated. Should you have any
questions or wish to discuss this further, please do not hesitate to contact me office.

Very truly yours,

¢ "'_,‘_‘;;ﬁ-wrfw}//"/""“_ ; '
Don Gilman

ce: Pat Whitten




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/01/15 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2015-012. By Jennifer Barnes. The applicant is requesting
a sign variance for the Mustang Ranch Steakhouse located at 5 North C Street in Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-086-01). The applicant requests variances to the provisions of
SCC 17 .84 (ordinance regulating signs and billboards) for the following purposes: (1) to allow a
sign to be more than 15 inches in width (height) which will be attached above the porch facing C
Street of the subject property; (2) to allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union
Street (south) of the subject property, and allow more than 15 inches in width (height) of that
porch-end sigry; and (3) to allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window
abutting Union Street but facing C Street (west) of the subject property.

2. Recommended motion: (Recommended motion for continuance to the July 7, 2018, meeting). In
accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning commission, the findings under
Section 6.1 of the staff report and other findings deemed appropriate by the board, and in
compliance with all conditions of approval, I [commissioner] hereby recommend approval for
Variance Number 2015-014 for the installation of a sign which will be attached to the porch of
the subject property and facing C Street and a painted sign on the side (north) of the subject
Property located at 76 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN: 001-084-09). (Note: The
applicant was not able to be present at the Planning Commission hearing; therefore, the matter
was continued to the June 18, 2015, planning commission meeting.)

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbomne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4., Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2015-012.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2015-012.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: ' Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
o District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
. A/ . Department Head Department Name:
County Manager | Qther agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

demaad b1

Agenda Item No..




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:

From:

Meeting Date:
Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:
File:

Applicant:

Property Owner:
Property Location:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Request:

Storey County Planning Commission

Storey County Planning Department

May 21, 2015 at 6:00 p.m.

Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Jason VanHavel, Planner

2015-012

Jennifer Barnes
5 Wild Horse Canyon Dr.,
Sparks, NV 89434

Mustang Ranch Productions; L1.C
5 North C Street

Figure 1: Site Photos, Figure 2: Site Photo, Figure 3: Site Photo,
Figure 4: Land Use Compatibility Table, Figure 5: Example figure
from code

Appendix |: Complete Variance Application

Storey County Code Sections: 17.12 General Provisions, 17.30 CR
Commercial Residential Zone, 17.48 H Historic Overlay District,
17.84 Signs and Billboards, NRS 384

The applicant requests variances to the provisions of Storey County
Code 17.84 (ordinance regulating signs and billboards) for the
following purposes: 1, to allow a sign to be more than 15 inches in
width (height) which will be attached above the porch facing C Street
of the subject property; 2, to allow a sign attached to the end of the
porch facing Union Street (south) of the subject property and allow
more than 15 inches in width (height) of that porch-end sign; and 3, to
allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window
abutting Union Street but facing C Street (west) of the subject
property.

Staff Report -~ 2015-012




Staff Report — 2015-012

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IEEOAUCTION. ...ttt et e e s et st e st et es st st s e e em e eaes 1
TabIe OF CONLEIES.....vcovriercriercrerrerrs et sae et s st s b emesenesseeenenenes 2
SEAFT REPOIT. ... ettt s e b e sasens 3-14
1. Background & ARalysiS........cocvirmrmrisrnnreriienrerisiaeseesecnseessssenss s s 3
2. General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents.......... 7
3. Compliance with the Storey County Code........covvvveniicrcrcrencrevirninennnn, 8
4. Compliance with the Storey County Master Plan.............ccorvrveveernne., 9
5. Public COMMENL.......ccoveiieriiicreirrreee s sere e eses s e 190
6. FINAINES. .ociiioeiiiii et 10
7. Recommended Conditions of Approval........ccccevevvvevevnee i 3
8. Power of the Board & Planning Commission.........ovuvuveersvensrerssicennnne 12
9. Proposed MOLIONS. ....viveciineiierie s seeetiesseenesresns s sssersessssesssenens 12
Appendix 1: Variance AppliCation.....co.oveceveiieneivcivee e e 15

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Site PhOtOS. .. cuvcei vttt ettt st st ev e 4
Figure 2: S8 PHOT0..couou v veirtirerrierer ettt et st cseensaessssete s seseann 4
Figure 3: S8 PROtO..c....ooeiviereierceeteret et stss et eenseeenseee et esesneseanas 6
Figure 4: Abutting Land Use Compatibility........ccouvvcieiieiecrisseseesenssnreereseeeen 8
Figure 5: Example figure from code.......oovivivieiirieeei e eeeeseeeseeees 9

2of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at 5 North C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
(Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 001-086-01). The property is owned by Mustang Ranch
Productions, LLC which the Nevada Secretary of State shows Lance Gilman as a Managing
Officer. The subject property is zoned CR Commercial Residential, within H Historic District
Overlay, and is approximately 4,209 square feet and 2 stories. The Mustang Ranch Steakhouse
currently operates in this property.

1.2 Proposed Use

The applicant requests variances to the provisions of Storey County Code 17.84 (ordinance
regulating signs and billboards) for the following purposes: 1, to allow a sign to be more than 15
inches in width (height) which will be attached above the porch facing C Street of the subject
property; 2, to allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street (south) of the
subject property and allow more than 15 inches in width (height) of that porch-end sign; and 3,
to allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window abutting Union Street but
facing C Street (west) of the subject property.

The applicant presented the now-existing signs to the Comstock Historic District Commission,
and the commission approved the signs as compliant with the Comstock Historic District’s
regulations pertaining architectural features and historic appropriateness. The applicant stated to
county planning staff that it was not known that review beyond the Historic District was needed,
and, therefore, the signs were installed immediately following Historic District approval.

1.3 Application for a Variance

1.3.1 Storey County Code (SCC) 17.84.090 E.1.b, “Signs must have a maximum dimension of
15 inches in width times the length of the building when installed on the face of a porch. Signs
may be 36 inches in width times the Iength of the building when installed on the face of the
building.”

The installed sign for the steakhouse that is attached on the porch railing of the subject property
and facing C Street appears to be greater than the maximum 15 inches in height.

1.3.2 SCC 17.84.090 E.1.b see above and SCC 17.84.090 F, “Signs on the ends of porches are
prohibited.” SCC 17.84.090 A, “Signs are not permitted on sides or rear of buildings unless
there is direct public access from an abutting legal public right-of-way. If such public access
exists, signs must conform to regulations for building fronts.” There is an installed sign on the
end of the porch railing facing Union Street of the subject property and it appears about 36
inches tall. Since the signs on sides of buildings abutting public ROWs may be treated similarly
as signs on building fronts, the south (Union Street) facing sign above the railing may be

30of15




Staff Report — 2015-012

considered as not a “sign on the end of a porch™, but a continuation of the west (C Street) facing
sign, and, therefore, allowable by this variance.

1.3.3 SCC 17.84.090 H “Neon signs are prohibited outside of buildings or within windows or
openings visible from a public place. This limitation includes lighted signs that appear similar to
neon signs, such as those which employ light emitting diodes (LED) that are configured so that
they appear as continuous streams of light.”

There is a lighted “Open” sign in the window of a door that abuts Union Street and faces C
Street. This sign appears to be in violation of the SCC. The applicant seeks a variance for this
sign as well. If this sign is approved, planning staff recommends that such motion allow a
lighted sign, but not a neon or neon-appearing sign.

Sign height and
on side of porch

A Variance to the provisions of this title may
be granted by the Board with action by the
Planning Commission where by reason of
exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape
of a specific piece of property at the time of
enactment of the regulations, or by reason of
exceptional topographic conditions or other
extraordinary and exceptional situation or
condition of the lot or parcel, the strict
application of the regulations enacted under
this title would result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and
undue hardships upon the owner of property.

Figure 2: Notice the lighted “Open” sign

Within this section of the SCC it also states: The Board’s approval, approval with conditions, or
denial of a Variance must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed use is appropriate
in the location for which it is approved. The findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to
be cited in an approval; the body may include additional findings in their decision. The Board
and Planning Commission must cite findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with
conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the approval must be based on findings that the proposal:

4 of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

1. That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification; and

2. That the granting of the application is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant; and

3. That the granting of the application will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and will
not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to
property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

1.4 Purpose and Intent of Existing Zoning

SCC 17.30.015 Purpose and Intent states, the CR zone is intended to serve as a community focal
point and provided for a center of mixed uses including single-family and multi-family
residences which are integrated with commercial businesses, culture and entertainment
amenities, and uses related to tourism. It is also intended to become a transportation center in the
form of a destination for vehicular, public transit, and rail traffic supporting all allowable uses. In
general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and provides an integrated
and attractive environment for visitors and residents. It is intended to be an area of high intensity
uses in which a full range of public facilities (including water, sewer, schools, law enforcement,
fire protection, etc.) will generally be focused in accordance with the County Master Plan and
connected to the immediate surrounding residential uses.

NRS 384 established the Comstock Historic District. NRS 384 and SCC 17.84.090 intent is to
preserve the historic look and feel of the historic district, SCC 17.48.010 adopts the provisions
of NRS 384 as part of the SCC within the H historic overlay zone. The subject property is
located within the Comistock Historic District. Therefore, a Certificate of Appropriateness will
have to be issued by the Comstock Historic District Commission {CHDC) prior to installing the
proposed signs.

1.5 Existing Abutting Land Uses

To the east of the subject property is the Comstock Historic District office; to the west is a
parking lot. The other properties in the area are various types of retail commercial.

1.6 Abutting Properties Zoning

All of the properties in the area are zoned CR.

50f15




Staff Report — 2015-012

1.7 Key Issues

The applicant has applied for a sign variance for their existing Mustang Ranch Steakhouse sign.
The applicant received approval from the Comstock Historic District and installed the sign. It
was not known that a variance was still needed from the county. The applicant is now seeking
that variance.

It was discovered during the preparation of this report that two other non-conforming signs exist
on the subject property. This one report will cover all of the identified signage issues, related
codes, and present different actions that the Planning Commission may take.

SCC 17.84.090 states that, “A Certificate of Historical Appropriateness from the Comstock
Historic District Commission must be submitted to the director prior to approval of any sign
within the Comstock Historic District.” Any approval shall contain a condition that a Certificate
of Historical Appropriateness be presented to the Storey County Planning Department for
granting of the variance, and the Storey County Building/Business License Department for
granting and renewal of a Storey County Business License for the associated business.

1.7.1 The first sign is located above the front of the porch facing C Street on the subject property.
According to SCC 17.84.090, the sign needs to run the length of the building and be no more
than 15 inches tall. The sign appears to be about 36 inches tall. It appears that the proposed sign
as installed does not have an adverse impact to the area. There is a grandfathered legal
nonconforming sign is the area. The “Bonanza” sign, 2 buildings away and installed in or about
the 1970s, does not conform to the current sign height requirement. That sign seems to have no
adverse impact on the area. It is also expected that the steakhouse sign facing C Street will have
negligible adverse impact

Notice relative L ) Notice relative
sign height ) sign height

5
A s i Fl 3

Figure 3: Steakhouse is subject property. 2 buildings to the left, the Bonanza has much larger lefters.

6 of 156




Staff Report — 2015-012

1.7.2 The second sign is located on the end of the porch facing Union Street of the subject
property. Signs are not allowed on the ends of porches. Since the subject property has direct
public access from a public right-of-way, signs are allowed on the side of the building facing
Union Street and the signs must conform to the regulations for the building front. The sign
appears to be about 36 inches tall which makes it nonconforming for the building front
regulations. For the same reason presented in 1.7.1, the sign on the porch facing Union Street
seems to have no adverse impact on the area because of the sign height.

The sign is on the end of the porch. It appears there are very few other signs on C Street on the
end of any porch. SCC specifically reads that no signs on the end of porches; however SCC
allows signs on the sides of a building where there is an adjacent public right-of-way, which
there is in this case. A way to address this issue may be to move the sign from the end of the
porch to the adjacent south-facing side of the building. If the sign were on the side of the
building, it would seem to be compliant with SCC 17.84.090.E.b. It seems that the potential for
adverse impacts to the area would be greater with the sign attached to the end of the porch than
to the side of the building. The Planning Commission could approve the sign as it is installed or
the sign could be required to move to the side of the building and potentially have less adverse
impact to the area.

1.7.3 The third sign issue is the illuminated “Open” sign in a window abutting Union Street and
facing C Street. Back-lighted, neon, and neon appearing signs may not be within windows or
openings visible from a public place; however this sign is located such. The SCC 17.84.090.H is
entitled Neon signs. This provision of the code applies to many different configurations of lights.
The sign has limited visibility from C Street and there are other legal nonconforming signs along
C Street. Planning staff finds that there is a potential hardship that would warrant a lighted sign
at this location. The associated saloon/lounge is only accessible from the outside via this off-C
Street location. Without a lighted sign, area pedestrians and motorists would likely pass by
unknowing of the adjacent business. This sign issue does not seem to produce any adverse
impacts to the area.

2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY'S

GUIDING DOCUMENTS
2.1 Table: Land Use Compatibility

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan) designations and

zoning for the land surrounding the subject property. There appears to be no conflict between the
proposed and the surrounding land use and Master Plan.

7 of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

Land Existing Land Use Master Plan Zoning)
. ' ial, residential
Applicant's Land Restaurant; saloon; Con*.lmerslal ::s' ;n iatand CR
and lounge tourism-based land uses
ial, residential
Land to the north Vacant hotel; retail fommer;:a,;ei-m dentla and CR
establishment; and {-CUTSM-based land uses
saloon.
_ ol resi .
Land to the west Parking lot Con?merma residential and CR
tourism-based land uses
ol o] .
Land to the south Saloon and abutting Con:nmer;:la ,;f]:SId;ntlal and CR
right-of-way Union tourism-based land uses
Street
- - -
Land to the east Office Corr.lmermal, residential and CR
tourism-based [and uses

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 Storey County Code SCC 17.84.150

Variances, states that applications for a Variance may be made pursuant to SCC section 17.84
and SCC section 17.03 Administrative Provisions, and may be allowed where, in the opinion of
the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) with action by the Storey
County Planning Commission (the Planning Commission}, the same is necessary and is not in
violation of the letter and spirit of the standards set forth in the SCC.

It further states, that a Variance may not be granted where a violation of the provisions set forth
by NRS 384 or any provision of SCC 17.84 applicable to the Comstock Historic District would
take place.

3.2 Storey County Code 17.48.010
The provisions of NRS 384 establishing the Comstock Historic District together with any rules
or regulations adopted thereto are made a part of this title within the H historic overlay zone.

The Comstock Historic District governs many of the standards per NRS 384, The Certificate of
Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District signifies that the county may approve a
variance pertaining to the subject property. The proposed variance shall include the certificate
from the district with conditional approval.

3.3 Storey County Code 17.84.010

The purpose of these regulations is to promote the wellbeing of the community by establishing
standards that assure the provision of signs adequate to meet essential communication needs
while safeguarding First Amendment rights and providing for a safe, healthy, and visually
attractive and appropriate environment.

The proposed variance should not interfere with the policy stated in this code.

8of15




Staff Report — 2015-012

3.4 SSC 17.84.90 Comstock Historic District Sign Requirements

The following standards apply exclusively to all signs located on buildings as established
pursuant to the terms of NRS 384, Location, size, and number of signs in Commercial (C) and
CR zones are as follows: A. Signs are not permitted on the sides of buildings. E.1.b. Signs must
have a maximum dimension of 15 inches in width times the length of the building when installed on
the face of a porch. Signs may be 36 inches in width times the length of the building when installed
on the face of the building. F. Signs on ends of porches are prohibited.

The applicant seeks a variance for these codes.

. SHigas, building titbes, 6r daws which were puinted dircetly 16 the face of the building ubove the upper floor
wwindows prior 1o the year 1942 may be napplied teervio uxactly us they existed sl o prior to ttat fime.

. w @ ’ h
Dlnierslon of Th ey m widke or rear
; - « ¥ the Langih oF tha n - unless there by
420 nitet b ot Roctangula: o < MTLdling 57 GV, % Th Evran 57 TR Gatttriing ] Sg,nl b
j Oy Oue sign Tight-ng-way,
Blgns oan By, 0 Permitied Between Hocra
BR 1% on bullaing fees O em taon of ey
Yo Chotoe) g,
ket ba fong)h o yor N Blgna
; Porch e puitd, o I cpeine® Ovarkailg B
o W o ing g?'w 4 g Bt
b P T ” ‘ L
e Abave ot = 9
Stctevealk b wﬂ“ Palnted on
L B Wind,
Par h o
“ Minlmum heigie, e Glray . 3
/ . - 0F lenwer edge of sign >
=T be 87 above nikownllc T - o
. - . N ot
- %
- o
o
o
‘vw’ I

Figure §: This figure covers the basics of sign elements in the Comstock Historic District.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY MASTER
PLAN

On page 5 of the Master Plan, objective 1.2 under Economy, Goals and Objectives: Promote
commercial business activity in Virginia City which will benefit local residents as distinct from
tourists and visitors.

This variance appears to add to the character of Virginia City and the business seems to offer a
service and employment options to residents. The lighted sign on the Union Street doorway also
appears to draw attention to an obscure entrance to the associated saloon and lounge.

On page 19 of the Master Plan it states: The economic base of a county is those activities which

provide basic employment and income. Storey County’s economic base shifted after World War
il from mining to tourism.

9of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

It is Staff’s opinion that when in conformance with design standards set forth by NRS, the SCC,
and the CHDC, the proposed sign appears to promote tourism and economic activity in a section
of town known from emerging economic opportunity and, therefore, is an activity which
provides basic employment and income.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

As of posting date, Staff had not received any public comment for this file.

6. FINDINGS

The Storey County Planning Commission (the Planning Commission) shall cite Findings in a
motion for a recommendation for approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The approval,
approval with conditions or denial of the requested Variance must be based on Findings. The
Findings listed in the following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Planning
Commission may include additional Findings in their decision.

6.1 Motion for Approval

The Findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval or approval
with conditions. The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested Variance when
the recommended conditions in Section 7 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional
approval must be based on the following Findings:

6.1.1 There are special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including the
configuration of the building and the location of the restaurant and saloon therein. Therefore, the
strict application of the zoning ordinance deprives a portion of the subject property-particularly
the saloon which is principally accessed from Union Street—of privileges enjoyed by other
propetrties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant (property owner).

6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare
or materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with the purpose and intent of Federal, Nevada
State, and Storey County regulations including, but not limited to, SCC 17.84 Signs and
Billboards, and NRS 384 as determined by the Comstock Historic District Commission.

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

6.2 Motion for Denial

10 0f 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the following Findings with explanation
of why should be included in that motion.

6.2.1 That there are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape,
size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance that
would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or
under identical zone classification.

6.2.2 That the granting of the Variance is not necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant (property owner).

6.2.3 That the granting of the Variance will, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

6.2.4 The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

6.2.5 The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not support the
goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan,

6.2.6 The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

6.2.7 No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would be sufficient
to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on adjacent and surrounding
residences and land uses.

7. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department.

7.1 If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval, unless additional
time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission in accordance with SCC
17.03 Administrative Provisions, based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the
project, then without further action, the Variance will be null and void and no associated
development activity may be made of the property except on the granting of a new Variance.

7.2 All signs must be maintained so that they remain free of graffiti and cracking, separation,
splitting, ripping, chipping, and fading of exposed surfaces including, but not limited to, faces,
lettering, and all structural supports, Signs must be maintained so that they remain safe, fully
upright and level, and firmly secured to their place of attachment. Guy wires, tie-downs and lean-
to support apparatuses are prohibited unless it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Planning Director that the supports are crucial to the structural integrity of the advertising device
and that design alternatives are impracticable,

11 0of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

7.3 The sign shall not interfere with traffic regulatory devices or otherwise obstruct motorists or
pedestrian vision.

7.4 The Applicant shall not display items for sale or conduct any business on the public right-of-
way or between the public traveled way and building, except as may be provided for by a
temporary special events permit.

7.5 The Variance Holder must obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness from the Comstock
Historic District and submit the Certificate to the Planning Department prior to installing the
proposed signs, and to the Building Department Business License Division prior to obtaining the
associated Storey County Business License.

7.6 The Variance Holder agrees to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless
from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other
claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this Variance.

7.7 All other non-conforming signs, except for legally non-conforming signs, on the premises
must be brought into compliance with the Storey County Code before the sign allowed by this
Variance is installed.

7.8 Storey County Code requires every person to obtain a sign permit from the Director prior to
erecting, installing or medifying a sign. Due to pending revisions in the existing sign ordinance,
the proposed signs are exempt of this requirement.

7.9 Before erecting the proposed sign, the Variance Holder must show the Planning Department
evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to date.

7.10 The Variance Holder shall contact, and work with, the Storey County Building Department
during the time of sign installation to ensure proper and safe installation of the sign.

8. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Planning Commission upon which
it bases its decision, The decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the
Yariance is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must
consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thercon as it deems
warranted.

9. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval with the
Conditions of Approval is recommended by Staff in accordance with the Findings under section
6.1 of the Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion to deny the

12 0f 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

proposed Variance may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the Findings shown
in section 6.2, Other Findings determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be
made part of either motion.

9.1 Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff
Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission, and in compliance
with all Conditions of Approval, I [Planning Commissioner] hereby recommend approval for
Variance Number 2015-012 for the following purposes: 1, to allow a sign to be more than 15
inches in width (height) which will be attached to the porch facing C Street; 2, to allow a sign
attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street and allow more than 15 inches in width
(height) of that sign; 3, to allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window
abutting Union Street but facing C Street (west), all at 5 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada
(APN: 001-086-01).

Summary: Approve all sign items in the variance including front above porch, side
above porch, and window facing Union Street

9.2 Alternative Motion (motion for selective approval)

In accordance with the Findings under Section 6.1 and/or 6.2 of the Staff Report and other
Findings deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and against the recommendation by
staff, I [Planning Commissioner| hereby recommend approval for Variance Number 2015-012
for only the following purposes at 5 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN: 001-086-01).
All signs not included in this motion for approval are recommended to be denied.

(Include only the items the Planning Commissioner wishes to approve)

1. Allow a sign to be more than 15 inches in width (height) which will be attached to the
porch facing C Street.

2. Allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street and allow more than
15 inches in width (height) of that sign.

3. Allow a sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street but allow ng more
than 15 inches in width (height) of that sign.

4. Allow a sign attached to the side of the subject property facing Union Street and
remove the sign attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street.

5. Allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window abutting Union
Street but facing C Street (west).

Summary: Selective approval of sign items in the variance

9.3 Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under Section 6.2 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Planning Commission, I [Planning Commissioner] hereby recommend denial
for Variance Number 2015-012 for the following purposes: 1, to allow a sign to be more than 15
inches in width (height) which will be attached to the porch facing C Street. 2, to allow a sign
attached to the end of the porch facing Union Street and allow more than 15 inches in width
(height) of that sign. 3, to allow a back-lighted “Open” sign to be installed inside of a window

13 of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012
abutting Union Street but facing C Street (west), all at 5 North C Street, Virginia City, Nevada
(APN: 001-086-01).

Summary: Deny the variance

14 of 15




Staff Report — 2015-012

APPENDIX 1

Complete Variance Application

15 0f 15




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/07/15 Estimate of time required: 30 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-5 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock Mining)
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners a major modification to its mine operating plan
so that the board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of the existing
SUP. The major modification will allow Comstock Mining to perform construction activities of
an underground mine portal and underground workings for exploration and mining as allowed by
the SUP within and eastward of the Lucerne Resource Area (existing mine pits) in southern Gold
Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject area map and narrative description are included in
Enclosure B.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with Condition No, 2.2 of Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2000-
222-A-5, I (Commissioner) validate that the major modification to Comstock Mining’s operating plan
conforms to the conditions of the existing SUP, and, accordingly, authorize county staff to accept the

operating plan modification and to proceed otherwise in accordance with the applicable federal, state,
and county regulations,

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbhorne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
5. Staff summary: See staff summary in Enclosure A.

6. Supporting materials: See Enclosures A, staff summary; and Enclosure B, SUP holder’s
submitted operating plan map and narrative amendments.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
€partment Head Department Name:
> County Manager Other agency reviews

‘/.

10. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No.




Enclosure A: Staff Summary (Comstock Mining Operating Plan Amendment 2015)

Summary of proposal: The SUP holder, Comstock Mining, requests to perform construction activities of
an underground mine portal and underground workings for exploration and mining as allowed by the SUP
within and eastward of the Lucerne Resource Area (existing mine pits) in southern Gold Hill, Storey
County, Nevada, as described in Enclosure B and as allowed by the SUP. The area subject to this request is
located approximately within and immediately east of Comstock Mining’s existing Lucerne Resource Area
{(mine pits) in southern Gold Hill. The area includes various private patented claims located within “Area
A” of the SUP, in which surface and underground mining, definition, exploration, and other related
activitics are allowed.

Summary of SUP validation provisien: The subject SUP provides that the Board of County
Commissioners validate that proposed major modifications to the SUP holder’s operating plan conform to
the conditions of the SUP. The SUP does not provide for planning commission review or hearing, If the
Board finds that the proposed modification conforms to the SUP, it shall without a formal vote direct staff
to accept the modification and allow the SUP holder to proceed as otherwise provided by federal, state, and
county regulations. SUP Condition No. 2.2 is as follows:

SUP Condition 2.2: Operating Plan SUP Conformance Review

The operating plan shall conform to the conditions of the SUP. The Permit Holder shall update the
operating plan concurrently with uses under the SUP and submit the updated plan to the Planning
Department prior to initiating activities under the modified plan.

For operating plan elements and uses within “Area A" (Exhibit A), the Board of Storey County
Commissioners (board) may verify if the draft modified operating plan and each major modification
thereafter (“modification”) conform to the conditions of the SUP. Qperating plan elements and uses
within “Area B" are not subject to this validation requirement. For “Area A", the operating plan
required by the NDEP or BLM (i.e., State Permits or Federal Plan of Operations), and the additional
operating plan elements required by the SUP but not the NDEP or BLM, are all subject to the
requirements of this section, but only as to whether the entive submission conforms to the SUP
requirements and not as to whether the submission approved by other agencies conform to those
agency Fequirements.

Minor modifications to the operating plan are not subject to the requirements of this section. Major and
minor modifications are as defined in SCC 17.03.110. 4 "Minor modification” defined by, or identified
as such in, the NDEP or BLM Plan of Qperations or reclamation plan are not subject to the
requirements of this section.

The Permit Holder shall submit to the Planning Department copies of the modification no later than
5:00 p.m. on the Friday of the third week before the board meeling at which the hearing will be
scheduled, The Planning Department and other applicable county departments, such as the Storey
County Fire Protection District, and the Emergency Management and Public Works Departments, as
applicable, will review the proposed modification and verify that it conforms to the conditions of the
SUP. If stoff finds that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP, the Planning Director
will schedule the matter on the agenda of the board 1o be heard at its next regular meeting. If staff finds
that the modification does not conform to the conditions of the SUP, the Permit Holder may resubmit
the modification until it is found by staff to be in compliance.

There shall be no hearing or advisory recommendation of the planning commission, and the board shall
only verify that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP.

The Planning Director shall present to the board a summary report with findings. If all members of the
board find that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP, it shall without a formal vote
direct staff to accept the modification and allow the Permit Holder to proceed accordingly. If one or
more members of the board expressly find that the modification may not conform to the conditions of
the SUF, the board shall by a majority vote verify that the modification is or is not conforming.

A majority vote verifying that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP authorizes staff to
accept the modification ond allows the Permit Holder to proceed accordingly. If the board by its vote
determines that the modification does not conform to the conditions of the SUP, it shall state findings of

Page 1 of 17




Jact of the nonconformance in its motion and vote to not authorize staff 1o accept the modification and

{o continue the item to the next regular board meeting to allow the Permit Holder the opportunity o
bring the modification into conformance.

The findings and determination of the board shall apply only to the modification’s evident conformance
to the existing conditions of the SUP, and shall not affect the conditions or entitiements existing in the
SUP. The board’s decision to authorize staff to accept the modification and allow the Permit Holder to
proceed accordingly may not be appealed, except by the Permit Holder. The Permit Holder may at any

time submit or re-submit modifications to its operating plan. There shall be no application fees or other
Jees required.

Page 2 of 17




Enclosure B: Submitted operating plan amendment to SUP No. 2000-222-A-5

Jupe 15, 2015

Austin Osborne, PHR, SHRM-CP
Administrative Officer/Planning Director
Storey County Courthouse

Box 176 Virginia City, NV 80440

Subject: Operating Plan Minor Medification for Lucerne Underground Mine Plans,
Lucerne Project, Storey County Special Use Permit 2000-222-A-5

Drear Mr. Osbome;

Comstock Mining LLC (Comstock) lias prepared this correspondence, in accordance with Storey
County Special Use Permit (SUP) 2000-222-A-5 Section 2.2 to provide a Minor Modification to
the SUP Operating Plan. Comstock is updating the Operating Plan concurrently with uses under
the SUP, and submitting this to you prior to initiating underground activities. Comstock would
like to commence underground activities on July 7, 2015, or upon your agreement and
verification the activities described herein conform to the conditions of the SUP.

Comstock plans to perform construction activities of an underground portal for exploration. This
exploration is intended for developing an eventual uaderground mining opemfion. Comstock
currently operates the Lucerne Project as an open pit mine with ore processing via beap leaching
and precious mefal recovery by the Merrill-Crowe process. Comstock plans to expand current
mining operations to include underground mining and the proposed exploration drifis are
designed to form part of future underground workings. Comstock’s current SUP allows “surface
and underground mining (mining); processing, milling, and beneficiation (processing); mine
definition; exploration; and uses which are ancillary to those uses.” Therefore, the proposed
project does not require a change to the SUP. These details are being provided to update the
Operating Plan.

The proposed Lucerne underground exploration and mining plans do not include any changes to
process compoenents nor do they propose any incremental surface disturbances. The proposed
activities are enfirely Iocated within Area A (Exhibit A) of the SUP which allows mining, mine
definition, exploration, and related uses. Comstock has designed this underground project to
conform {o the conditions of the SUP.

Thank you for your review of these plans. Please contact me with any questions.
Re;pe&ﬂrll}i

Rachel Yelderman
Director of Eavironmental

Enclosure

F.0. 80X 1118 « 1200 AMERICAN FEAT ROAD « VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440
AN {775) 847-8272 « FACSIMILE (T75) B47-.4762

Page3 of 17 |




LUCERNE UNDERGROUND MINE PLANS

SUMMARY

Comstock Mining currently operates the Lucemne Project as an open pit mine with ore processing
via conventional cyanide heap leaching and precious mefal recovery by fhe Memill-Crowe
process. The proposed underground mining expansion fo the Luceme project would be
developed from the floor of the existing open pit without additional or incremental surface
disturbances. Underground exploration of the proposed mine area will use the nining portal and
limited infrastrocture. The mine portal will be established within and horizonta! to the existing
pit floor, therefore no uncharacterized rock types will be encountered. Waste rock from
construction of the portal will be placed on existing waste rock ficilities.

Following successful underground exploration. an undesground mine would be developed with
ore processing occurmring at the existing processing facility. Waste rock material from the
undarground would be placed in three different locations. Most of the waste will be utilized for
backfill of ore stopeing. Excess waste from development will be stored in existing waste rock
curmaps for the open pit and also placed in the Southern end of the Lucermne pit as part of the back
fill for the finat reclamation. Closure of the underground openings will be concurrent with open
pit and waste rock facility reclamation at the end of mine life. All surface features of the
underground mine will be positioned on private land Figure 1: Lucerne Underground
Overview illustrates the overview of the proposed underground mine.

COMSTOCK PAGE 2 OF 15

Page 4 of 17




FIGURE 1: LUCERNE ENDERGROUND OVERVIEW

m

e’ S R Ry, St iy, B0 TS e e g Fouloti s £ Bt sy & reii Ry ) g‘ﬁﬂa mx.m.wr.ou-ﬁnmﬁl b
T ey - LA A | e - 4 Drifts Location h
i oAt 5 Doeme e SEZ T oo, o [ i [P E mﬁm x .

e aemje T M piive Trdeharyn PEE RIS [asim gk Sirtrntans Powe & viactiaimie 1
= e b 4 - S He T | Figure 1

COMSTOCK PAGE 3 OF 15

Page 50f 17




EXPLORATION

The proposed exploration drift will be developed from the floor of the existing Lucerne Pit with
proposed locations shown on Figure 1: Lucerne Underground Overview. The main north-
bearing drift will be approximately 1,300 feet long, and the second drift will branch off and
extend approximately 750 feet to the sontheast. In total, the drift and muck bays are anticipated
to be over 4,000 feet long. The exploration drifts and associated facilities will be situated on
previousty-disturbed private land located within the coment Reclamation Permit bonadaries. No
new disturbances are anficipated for the proposed drift development.

A 15-foot-wide by 15-foot-high portal will be constructed af the drift entrance. Comstock plans
to install the following supporting infrastrechwe near the portal:

1. Poriable frailers, incloding mobile offices, dry facilities, and fuel/tube storage;
2. A water fank (water will be hauled from the plant using an existing water truck);
3. A four-foot-diameter auxiliary fan; and

Flexible air ducting will extend from the fan to the end of each drift to provide venfilation.
Additional ufilities will include three 2-inch-diameter SDR11 HDPE pipelines that wifl be
installed in the drift to convey compressed air, fresh drill water, and discharge water from
drifling activities. A femporary generator will provide power fo the drift exploration work.

MG

The proposed underground mine would be developed from the floor of the existing Luceme open
pit mine. Primary access and production hanlage would be from this pit floor development, with
secondary access developed from the existing haul road. Ore production methods would be
finalized following completion of underground exploration drilling. 1t is expected production
would be conducted primarily by standard cut and fill methods. Drift development will be done
by drilling and biasting using appropriate blasting agents as determined by rock characteristics.
Blasted rock would then be excavated and loaded into underground haul trucks and both ore and
waste rock would be hauled to the surface. Ore would then be hawded to the existing processing
facitity. Waste rock will be segregated and either wtilized for backfilling of ore stopes or hauled
to existing waste rock sforage dumps. Backfill would be niade up of a mixture waste rock and
cement mixed on the surface and havled back undergronnd fo mined out ore stopes where it
would be jammed info place to fill the void of the ore stope to assure pround stability and
minimize deposit waste on the surface. All surface disturbance will be on private land.

Table 1 includes a summary of planned mine production from the underground and
corresponding material routing. The sequencing, timing, and potential expansion of mine

€OMSTDCK PAGE 4 OF 15

Page 6 of 17




development is dependent on the results of on-going ore body characterization and economic
conditions.

TAEBLE }: PLANNEDAMINE FRCDUCTION

Ore to Heap Leach 500,000 0.230 1.508
Waste Reused as Backfili | 315,000 - -
Waste to Waste Dumps 75,000 - -

GEOLOGY

Ore bodies mined from the underground area are primarily oxide ore types with low potential for
acid generafion Table 2 summarizes the predominant rock types by material. Geochemical
analysis on the underground materials will be completed by Nevada Division of Fnvironmental
Protection — Bureau of Mining Regulation and Reclamation (NDEP-BMRR) prior to initiating
underground activities.

TABLE 2: PREDOMINANT ROCK TYPES

iz

uartz Porphyry Cre COxide
Alta Andesite Cre Qxide
Alta Andesite Waste <59 Sulfide
IMetavolcanic NV Waste Oxide
HI5TORIC WORKINGS

Given the existence of historic vnderground workings, it is expected that new development could
intersect previous mined levels and stopes. In the event of these interceptions, old workings
would be barricaded from new development so that ventilation and drainage systems are not
compromised as well as being a fire barrier. Bamricades may be constructed from concrete block,
cemented backfill or altemative material which meets the requirements. Man doors may be
installed on barricades to allow access for exploration or escape ways. In the event that old
workings are to be used for mining activities, they will be rehabilitated and included in the mine
ventilation, drainage and escape plans.

HYDROLOGY

Available data indicate that anticipated underground mining depths will not intercept
groundwater. Therefore, dewatering to manage grovndwater flow is not expected to be required
during or after operations. Comstock Mining has drlled multiple deep exploration holes in and
around the proposed Lucerne Underground Mine. Detailed logs were kept regarding gromnd

COMSTOCK PAGE 5 OF 15

Page 7 of 17




water on reverse circulation holes that are used to help determine the ground water levels. These
logs show that all holes were dry unfil reaching an elevation of 4530° or lower.

Elevation 4530 is the elevation of the south lateral of the Sutro Tunne! where it ends at the Alta
shaft just porth of the Lucerne Undergronnd Mine area. The Sutro Tunnel was constructed in the
18705 as a drainage tunnel for the Comstock Lode. The main tunnel intersects the Jode near the
Combination Shaft in Virginia City and stretches east fo the main portal in Dayton, NV, Lateral
extensicns were driven north and south from the main tumnel. The southernmost extension
extends fom the Combination Shaft wnder Gold Hill to the Foreman Shaft and finally terminates
at the Alta Shaft. TFrom the Alta Shafl, extensive old workings commert underground south
bevord the Lucemne Underground Mine. Although collapsed in places the tunnel still functions
as a drain for the Comstock. The draining end of the funnel is located in Dayton, NV,

Figure 2: Long Section from South End of Lucerne Pit to Alta Shaft shows a long section of
underground workings from the south end of the Luceme Pit to the Alta Shaft. Dnill holes are

also shown with logged water flow from drilling,

FIGURE 1: LONG SECTION FROAMM SOUTH END OF LUCERNE PIT TO ALTA SHAFT

Figure 2’ Lang Section fiom Soulh End of Luceems PR o Als Shak T COMETOCE
; HINENEE

AR TG,

(e EEY

Thuwiu

TpRar ter

oA Tpaunt
(L0

[
Y X lex o abe 2 s bn Fltm V7 AT
A
Y
i

COMSTOCK PAGE 6 OF 18

Page § of 17




Page 9 of 17




VENTILATION RAISES

Mining ventilation s a particular safety concern for many nining operations. Poor ventilation of
mines may cause exposure to harmful gases, heat, and dust. These can cause harmful
physiological effects or desth. The concentration of equipment exhaust and other aithorne
contaminants underground can generally be controlled by dilution (ventilation), and isolation
{seals and stoppings). A ventilation system is installed with ducts to supply a flow of air through
the working areas of the mine. Air circulation necessary for the effective ventilation of a mine is
generated by one or more, large mine fans located on the surface or underground. Air flows in
une direction only, making circuits through the mine so that each main work area constantly
receives a supply of fresh air.

Mine development will initially be ventilated by a single fan placed near the portal shown on
Figure 4: Lucerne Underground Mine Features. This location is well inside the existing
Luceme pit and over 2000 feet away from the nearest residence. Later development and mining
phases will require the use of ventilation raises also shown on Figure 4. Drilling and boring of
the ventilation raises requires specialized equipment such as drilling rigs, and raise borers. The
nearest residential receptor is over 1000 it north east of the proposed ventilafion raises.

The purpose of the ventilation raise is to eitfter convey fresh air from the surface to the
vnderground mine workings below ground, or to vent exhaust air from the mine fo the surface.
Depending upon the location and design, a given ventilation raise could also serve as a secondary
escapeway from underground in an emergency. This ventilation provides a flow of fresh air to
the mine of sufficient volume fo dilute and/or remove noxious gases from equipment that runs on
diesel engines, blasting, and the ore-body itself. The ventilation raises are critical to the health
and safety of the miners. The typical configuration of a ventilation raise consists of 2 4 to 12-
foot diameter shaft lined with steel or concrete. The depth of the vent raise shaft ranges from
140 1o 400 feet. The surfice expression of a vent raise consists of 2 concrete pad that the shaft
mns througle. The pad can be used as the foundation for an exhaust/intake cone or a ventilstion
fan is reguired.

The source of above-gronnd noise {s primarily ventilation fans located on the surface. Sound
levels from a typical 350 horsepower fan may be up fo 100 dBA at a distance of 10 feet from the
fan opening. Comstock Mining would locate ventilation fans underground whenever practical.
Placing fans underground, typically at the base of ventilation raises, greatly reduces the noise
exposuse on the surface. Due to the topography, noise can travel and reverberate in
unpredictable ways within Gold Canyon. Given that ventilation fans are fized sources for noise,
Cormstock Mining will make every effort to mitigate and reduce noise for residences and points
of interest that could be affected.

COMSTOCK . PAGE 3 OF 15

Page 10 of 17




SILVER CITY WATER LINE PROTECTION

Development and operation of the Luceme uaderground mine will not adversely impaci the
Silver City Water Line per SUP condition 7.3. The proximity of the underground operation and
ancillary disfarbances is shown on Figare 4: Lucerne Underground Mine Features. The
Silver City water line protection plan describes measures by which Comstock Mining wall
protect the water line from accidental damage and service distuption due to sarface and
underground nuning. It alse details how accidental damage to the line, or events causing
disruptton to service as a result of activity associated with the SUP, will be freated and remedied
immediately and without disruption to service provided to Silver City. The measures described
in this plan will be applied to the Lucerne Underground Project. These include:

1.

t

Training and orientation of our blasting contractor to the threshold himits of our Blast
Monitoring Program.

Matntenance and monitoring of cur deployed seismic monitoring system to validate
compliance with Blast Monitoring Plan. One seismic monitor would be relocated.
Recording of seismic activity associated with each blast, surface or underground.
Inspections and reporting of any subsidence of ground, and/er rock fall in near proximity
to the subject water line, as a reselt of underground mining activily.

A ventilation raise may be located within 115 linear feet of the water line, which will
necessitate the same monitoring and proteciive measures as would other surface acfivities
in close proximity to the water line. These mclude pre-estaminations, on-site real time
phiysical observation, and post activity inspection and monitoring.

{:OMSTOCK PAGE 8 OF 15

Page 11 of 17




P e

2 e

COMSTOCK

Page 12 of 17

PAGE WD OQF 15




PROXTAMITY TO STATE ROUTE 342

The proposed Luceme underground exploration and mine would cross beneath State Route 342
(SR 342}. The depth of the drift where it crosses SR 342 would be approxzimately 345" balow
ground surface. There will not be any vertical disturbance in this area that would cause
instability fo SR 342. Figure 5: Exploration Drift and SR 342 Section dapicts the proposed
design in this area.

FIGURE 5: EXPLORATION DRIFT AND SR 341 SECTION

COMETOCK [tupiorotton Crit: Joetes 1f=duu=tais [01owing §:
MINING SR-332 Senjisn [IEiLIz V@ rany gr:mite Eaglesaring é WIE ;

COMSTDCK PAGE 11 OF 15

Page 13 of 17




MATERIAL PROCESSING
All of the ore from the Luceme underground mine would be processed at Comstock Mining™s

leach pad facility located at 1200 American Flat Road. As with the current open pit ore,
underground ore wonld be processed via conventional cyanide heap feaching and precious metal
recovery by the Mermill-Crowe process. Ore from open pit and underground sources will be
processed concurrentty based on production schedule requirements. Open pit and underground
ore would be stacked on Cell 9 then Cell 10 over the course of the mime hife Delivenies of ore
from the underground to Celf 9 would be less than 10% of the cell’s capacity. Underground ore
could comprise of up to 90% of Cell 10 mmaterial The sequencing timing, and potential
expansion of mine development may change subject to on-going ofe body characterization and
econonc conditions.

Ore would be hanled from mderground and stockpiled on the surface in or near the cnrent open
pit. The stockpiled ore would be transferred to hau! trucks that would transport matenial overland
via existing hauls roads to the processing plant. Ore would be crushed to 1.25 inches or less.
Agglomeration with lime/cement would be utilized to increase recovery and leaching efficiency.
The ore is transposted from the crusher via a series of conveyors and stacked on the pad to a
maxinnm height above the lined base. Specific Lift heights, bench widths, and heap toe setbacks
are maimained in accordance with the NDEP-BMRR permits. Leack solution of difute sodium
cyanide would be applied to the crushed and applomerated ore. After the solntion percolated
through the pad, the pregnant solution is collected and processed by the existing Memitl-Crowe
process plant for recovery of precious mefals.

WASTE ROCK DUMPS

Waste rock material from: underground would be placed in three different locaticas. Most of the
waste will be vtilized for backfill of cre stopes. Excess waste from development will be stored in
existing waste rock dumps for the open pit waste in the Billie-the-Kid and Hartford pit areas.
These waste rock dumps will be constructed with anple-of-repose slopes that will be re-graded
during reclamation of the surface mine. Excess waste rock would also be placed in the southern
end of the Lucerne pit as part of the backfill for the final reclamation.

DISTURBANKCE

Initial exploration will not cause disturbance to any undisturbed land.  The underground portal
will be constructed in the existing pit. Additional disterbance areas will occur as result of the
proposed underground expansions. Most of the surface disturbance of the Lucerne wnderground
mine will be on lands previously dismibed by the current open pif. A total of 15.9 acres of
surface disturbance is planned with 14.9 actes on previously distarbed land. The eatire surface
disturbance is planmed to be on private land owned by Comsstock Mining. Table 3 defails the

COMSTOCK PAGE 12 OF 16

Page 14 of 17




proposed surface disturbance areas and indicates if it is on existing disturbed land or if it is a new
distarbance. Figure 6: Curvent and Proposed Surface Distwrbance shows the surface
distrbance of the proposed Luceme nnderground mine which includes porfals, ventilation
raises, and waste rock facilities.

TABLE 3: SURFACE DISTURBANCE AREAS

Portal ' -
Vent Raises ' 1.0
Billie-the-Kid Waste Dump -
Hartford Waste Dump -
Lucerfie Waste Dump 1.9 -

FIGURE 6: CURRENT AND PROPOSED SURFACE DISTURBANCE

o : '’ 0 = tio
s . - S
P Y & 3 A T 3

z o :

§
Ly
)

Tinpe = 305 nt.

COMSTOCK enc 1306 1

Page 15 of 17




RECLAAMATION AND CLOSURE PLAN

Surface disturbance of the underground expansion will be intemal to curreat reclamation permit
boundary. Ail of the snrface disturbance will be on private land and most surface disturbance
will be covered by reclamation of the open pit. During the closure of the open pit the
underground openings will be closed as well.

The proposed portal closure work would be consistent with maintaining public safety and
stability using a plug and backfill method, which will require:

+ Placement of approximately 330 tons of backdill material (Le., rock generated dusing deift
development and stockpiled adiacent to the portal) compacted into the porfal opening.
This volume corresponds to backfill approximately 20 feet thick in the 15-foot-wide by
15-foot-high portal. The rock backfill will be from berms and ramps i the pit that will no
longer be in use at the time of closure.

» Placement of approximately 50 cubic yards of concrete (Le., approximately four feet
thick} to form a permanent portal phig. :

¢ DPlacement of approximately 500 tons of backfill materdal (i.e.. approximately 30 feet
thick) compacted against the external side of the concrete plug.

The nfrastrochure &t the portals is to be removed prior fo fite closure of the portal. Related
ground support shall be covered at the time of the portals backfill. All portals developed in the
future by Comstock Mining would be closed in 2 consistent manner with a plug and backfill
method based upon the portal dimensions and matenial available.

Ventilation raises infrastructure including 4,200 feet of fences will be removed before closure of
the raises. The raise openings will be closed with 2 concrete plug and then backfilled with rock
fill. The rock will either come fom in pit berms and ramps, or dlhevium if it is located outside of
the Tucerne project area.

In addition, Comstock will barricade unsafe historical vnderground nrine access portals and
shafts, if encountered om the properfy, consistent with the Nevada Diviston of Minerals
fegulations at NAC 513

Miscellaneous non-eatthwork reclamation work will inciude the removal of the approximately
2500° long site power line and substationAransformer and the dismantling, and removal of
process and cust control water pipelines and associated ancillary infrastrocture.

Comstock Mining has applied for an amendment to the NDEP-BMRR permifs to include the
underground achivities described herein  Reclamation costs associated with the proposed
development of exploration drifts were calculated using the Nevada Standardized Reclamation
Cost Estimate (SRCE) Model, Version 1.4.1, Build 17a, with 2014 NDEP-BMRR. Cost Data;

COMSTOCK PAGE 14 0F 15

Pa_ge 16 0f 17




these have been provided to NDEP-BMRR for approval. The estimated total reclamation cost
for the proposed exploration drifts and portal is $29.811. Comstock Mining current reclamation
bond obligation with NDEP-BMRR is $7,066,648, and the proposed exploration described
herein will increase Comstock Mining’s reclamation obligation to $7,096,459. Comstock
Mining has an existing reclamation bond in the amount of $7,147,963, meaning the Luceme
Project will still be overbonded with the propesed activities. Since all of the proposed activities
will be bonded with NDEP-BMRR, no additional bonding is required by Storey County.

COMSTOCK PAGE150F 15

Page 17 0of 17




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

: "’12 Agenda Action Report
A
WG
Meeting date: 07/07/15 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Storey County and
the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD) for noxious weed abatement in Six and Seven
Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, Virginia City, and American Flat, in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: I [Commissjoner] motion to approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU))
between Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District (DVCD) for noxious weed
abatement in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Hill, Gold Canyon, and American Flat in Storey

County, utilizing funds provided by the Storey County Public Works Department, and in-kind match
provided by the DVCD.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

5. Staff summary: See staff summary in Enclosure A.

6. Supporting materials: See Enclosures A, staff summary; and Enclosure B Memorandum of
Understanding between Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District,

7. Fiscal impact: (yes) $15,000 provided by the Public Works Department from noxious weed
abatement fund. _

Funds Available: yes Fund: Roads 020 Comptroller
8. Legal review required: yes
District Attorney
- Department Name:
Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~r—
[ S —

Agenda Item No.




Enclosure A: Staff Summary

Storey County Planning
Staff Recommendation Summary

Commission Meeting Date; July 7, 2015

Summary Notes:

Storey County, in cooperation with the Dayton Valley Conservation District and the Carson Water
Subconservancy District has over the past four years employed reoccurring comprehensive noxious
weed treatment within portions of the county located within the Carson River Watershed, including
Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, Gold Hill and Virginia City, and American Flat. The
goal is to improve water quality and riparian habitats in Storey County and reduce noxious weed
seed sources to the lower portions of the Carson River Watershed management areas in the Dayton

and Lahontan Valleys.

Each year we were successful in meeting our goals. More than 80 percent of noxious species,
particularly Perennial Pepperweed and Hoary Cress, were eradicated in the treated areas. Treatment
included initial application of 2-4D and Telar, removal of dead materials, and several follow-up
sprays lasting from April through August of each year. The treated area in Six Mile and Seven Mile
Canyons was approximately 136 acres, including a fifteen mile stretch of varying widths from ten
to seventy five feet. The treatment area in Gold Canyon was similar and included approximately 40
acres of treatment area.

Funding:

In past years, the Carson-Truckee Conservancy District awarded Storey County approximately
$16,000 funding each year to complete the projects. Storey County used the funds to reimburse
Dayton Valley Conservation District for costs associated with project management, vehicle fuel,
equipment, herbicide, safety supplies, and contract crew. Storey County also provided
approximately $5,000 in-kind match to the Dayton Valley Conservation District for project
administration, property notifications and postage, roadside signage, vehicle use and fuel, and
mapping/inventory services. The Dayton Valley Conservation District provided in-kind match to
cover mapping and inventory, project management, and the purchase of herbicides.

Because the Carson-Truckee Conservancy District is required this year to dedicate funds
previously used for this project to certain Truckee River projects, Storey County through the Public
Works weed abatement fund budgeted $15,000 to be applied for this purpose. Additionally, Storey
County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District will respectively contribute $5,202 and
$4,000 in-kind match for the services described above during previous years. Additionally, through
a separate inter-local, the Carson Water Subconservancy District will apply $5,000 funding to the
Dayton Valley Conservation District toward completion of this Storey County project.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.

Respectfully,

Austin Osborne
Storey County Planning Director

Page 2 of 6




Enclosure B: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

An Agreement Between

Storey County
P.O. Box 435, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-0958 - Fax: (775) 847-0935

And

Davton Valley Conservation District
P. O. Box 1807, Dayton NV, 89403
Phone: (775) 246-1999 — Fax: (775) 246-1998

WHEREAS, Storey County is a governmental subdivision of the State of Nevada and therefore a
public agency under NRS 277.100; and

WHEREAS, the Dayton Valley Conservation District is a governmental subdivision of the State of
Nevada, a public body corporate and politic, organized in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 548 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS); and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to mutually enter agreements
with any one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking
which any of the public agencies entering into the Agreement are authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District wish to cooperate in the
funding and performance of work for noxious weed management along Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold
Canyon, and Gold Hill, in Storey County, Nevada; and

WHEREAS, Storey County and the Dayton Valley Conservation District each possess common
objectives, responsibilities, and concerns in regard to the spread of noxious weeds in the Carson River
Watershed

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follow:

1. PARTIES. This Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between STOREY
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, and the DAYTON VALLEY
CONSERVATION DISTRICT (“DVCD”), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

2. AGREEMENT TERM. This Agreement becomes effective upon approval of each party’s governing
body. '

3. TERMINATION. This Agreement will terminate on December 31, 2015, at which time DVCD
will have one (1) month thereafter to submit its final request for payment related to work performed
under this Agreement.

4. PROJECT DUTIES,

a. Storey County shall provide funding assistance in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00
to DVCD for herbicides and project management; seasonal cortract crews; safety
materials, training, and supplies; fuel; and overall administration.

Page 3 of 6




€.

Storey County shall provide weed mapping and inventory services.

Storey County shall provide United States Postal Service mail notification to all
property owners within the scope of the project located within Storey County.

DVCD shall coordinate and manage seasonal contract crews; provide equipment and
materials to treat noxious weeds; and provide seasonal persons to spray/apply
herbicides in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, and Gold Hill in Storey
County, Nevada.

Upon approval of this Agreement, all work may begin on or before August 1, 2015

5. MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS.

a.

Storey County shall provide $15,000.00 funding to DVCD to help cover the cost of
mapping and inventory of noxious weeds, project management, seasonal contract
crews, safety materials, training, supplies, fuel, overall administration and the purchase
and application of herbicide in Six and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, and Gold
Hill.

Storey County shall provide $5,202.00 in-kind contribution to cover portions of the
cost of United States Postal Service mail notification to all property owners within the
scope of the pro;ect located within Storey County; mapping and inventory of noxious
weeds; highway sign management for vehicular traffic on Six Mile Canyon Road and
State Route 342; and United States Postal Service mail notification of said project to
property owners within the area of the project in Storey County.

DVCD shall provide a $4,000.00 in-kind contribution to cover the cost of mapping and
inventory of noxious weeds, project management, and the purchase of herbicide in Six
and Seven Mile Canyons, Gold Canyon, and Gold Hill.

6. FUNDING REQUESTS.

a.

DVCD shall submit to Storey County requests for funding in an amount up to
$15,000.00 over the period of this Agreement but not before July 1, 2015, and in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement. The request for funding
must be accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for.

Storey County shall pay the approved amount of the request to DVCD within four 4
weeks of completion of the project, and in accordance with the applicable provisions of
this Agreement; provided, however, the request is not made before July 1, 2013.

Storey County shall not have the responsibility to fund requests exceeding a total of
$15,000.00.

7. NOTICE. For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows:

STOREY COUNTY DVCD

Attn:-Mike Nevin Attn: Rob Holley
Public Works Director District Manager
P. 0. Box 435 ‘ P. O. Box 1807
Virginia City, NV 89440 Dayton, NV §9403
(775) 847-0958 (775) 246-1999

8. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS

Page 4 of 6




9.

10,

11.

12.

13.

14,

15..

16.

chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to
punitive damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach should be
limited by NRS 354.626.

INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The parties shall each assume liability for the negligent actions of or failure to act by their
respective Boards, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors, which may
arise out of this Agreement. Further, in executing this Agreement and to the extent
permitted under Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 41, and without waiving any provision
thereof, the parties hereto agree to hold harmless, indemnify and defend each other from
all damages, costs or expenses which any of them shall become obligated to pay by
reason of liability imposed by law for property damage or personal injury to or death of
persons arising or resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of their respective
Boards, officers, agents, employees, volunteers, and contractors which may arise under
this Agreement.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of
written notice by the indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party’s actual
notice of any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not
be liable to hold harmless any attorneys' fees and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen
right to participate with legal counsel.

INSURANCE. Each party shall provide for their financial responsibilities regarding their respective
obligations, rights, and liabilities hereunder through the purchase of insurance or the provision of an
adequate self-funded program pursuant to Nevada Law.

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Agreement and its incorporated documents. In respect to
performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, each party is and shall be a public agency
separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Agreement. The
parties shall also have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of
the details incident to its duties under this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-
employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable by a
court of law or equity, this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of
this Agreement unenforceable,

ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION. Neither paity shall assign, transfer, or delegate any rights,

obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.
PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,

produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confi-
dential by law or otherwise required by this Agreement.

PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Agreement on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and that
the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in the Agreement.

Page 5 of 6




17. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties
herein shall be governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties
agree that any proceedings with respect to the performance or enforcement of this Agreement shall be
brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Nevada either in the First Judicial District
Court, the Third Judicial District Court, or the United States District Court in Reno.

18. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement shall not be construed as or be deemed to be an Agreement for
the benefit of any third party or parties not specifically named herein, and no third party or parties
shall have a right of action hereunder for any cause whatsoever.

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Agreement and its incorporated document(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive
statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may
have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an incorporated document to
this Agreement specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Agreement,
general conflicts in language between any such document and this Agreement shall be construed
consistent with the terms of this Agreement

20. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpart copies, and each of
which so executed, irrespective of the date of execution and delivery, shall be deemed to be an
original, and all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed and intend to be
legally bound thereby.

STOREY COUNTY DAYTON VALLEY CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Marshall McBride Date Chuck Roberts Date
Commission Chairman DVCD Chairman

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Vanessa Dufresne, Clerk-Treasurer Joseph Ricci, Secretary/Treasurer, DVCD

Page 6 of 6




Dayton Valley
| Conservation
7 District

P.O. Box 1807
Dayton, NV 89403
(775) 246-1999

Budget notes, Storey County and Dayton Valley Conservation
District Noxious Weed Project

Contractual costs reflect the employment costs of the weed crew, at a cost of $816.08/day.
Includes wages, and associated taxes, workers comp, etc. for 1 crew boss, 1 lead, and 4 crew
members. Project amount covers 3.5 weeks of work, or slightly more with a smaller crew
size.

Herbicide and supplies covers the cost of pesticides and related products such as Telar, 2,4~
D, Opensight surfactant, and dye, as well as necessary protective equipment, including items
such as Tyvek suits, gloves, eye protection, snake leggings, etc.

Fuel costs reflect cost estimates, too and from Dayton, for 1| Dodge 2500 crew cab with spray
equipment, and 1 GMC 2500 with spray equipment.

Project management and administration costs are reflected in billing, supply acquisition and
distribution, project coordination, and coordination with Storey County.




00'008°€ S 06 8 sje1o ]

00°000°T S 0T 1 JoAeids 1a8uey suiejod 3007

00001 ) 0z T SdD ounr I|quilL TT0Z

00°00% S (0]4 T 19|te JaAelds passn 200T

00'005°T S 0z T J9AeIds /m ¢/€28p0oa Y00T

00°00t ) 0z ¥ uo|jes ¢ yoedyaeg ojos
s|e101qns shepjo # SHUN Jo # ?o1yan 40 wawdinb] jo adA]

SUDIINGLIIUOD punj-uj Joj saley piepulels jo sajdwexy sa1els uIaIsSap g USWILIERY

00°20Z°'ve s | oozoz’s s | ooooo'y s | oo'000'st s 139ang w101

00°000°ZT ) - - S - s | ooo00zT S MIHD SLOVHLINOD

000002 S - S - $ { 00°000C S | S3IddNS AL3IAVS/IAIDIgYIH

00°2I0T 5100276 S J o000t S - S ONIddVIN

00'818°¢ S ] 00'8TY S fooroov's S - S INIWLIND3I

000t s | ooobt ) - S | 00°00€ S 1an4

0028y sloozeL's S jooose S | 00°00T S NOILYHISININGY

00°0sL S - $ | 00°0Se S | 00005 S ININIDYNYIN 1I3r0Nd

139and W.L0L-8NS | AFHOLS HOLVIN GNDI-NI AIAA HIOLIVYIN GNIX-NI SI1GVISHNgiNIIY WILIZASYL AHODILYD

STOT AelN 2A11033

STOZ WWaWIeDl] P SROIXON UOAUETD) PlOL) pue 'SUCAURY) B[N L 8 O

Aunan Azu015-0DAQ |e20421U] Joy 398png Yelq

12LISI(] UOIIBAIDSUOT) AB||eA UOLARG




00°Z0zve s | oozoz’'s s ooo00'v s | 00°000'sT s 1390ng Wwiol
00000°ZT S - S - S JooooozT S MIYD SEOVHINGD
00°000°Z S - S - s | oo000Z S | S3ddNS AL33vS/AaIDEgdIH
002107 S | 00ET6 S ] 00001 S - ) ON|ddVIN
00 8IB'E S j0O'8TY s | ooocor'e S - S ININLIND3
00 Ov¥ S jooort S - s | ooo0g S 13an3
00281y SjoozeL's S | 00'0se S 100002 ) NOILYHLSININGY
00'05L S - S 1 00°05¢ s | 00008 S INIFNIOYNVIN 1D310Ud
13930N8 W10L1-8NS | AFHOLS HOLVYIN ONIX-NI UIOAQ HOLYIN ONIDI-NT | S3718YIs¥nNainiIy WIALI/ISYL AYODILYD
STOZ A=A 2A1309)3
ST07 JUSWIedi] P9/ SNOIXON UoAuer) pjog pue ‘sucAue) ajiNl £ 8 9
Aluno) A2J015-0JAQ |B20MIY] Joy 198pNng Yeiq
10U1SI] UopeAlasuo) Aajep uclieq




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

AL
ey

Meeting date: 7/7/15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to he continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then prmted and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

I
[— "

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Community Development
Buginegs

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847—6966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Qffice June 29, 20615
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the July 7, 16, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

HARDSCAPES, INC, — Contractor / 950 Dartmouth Drive ~ Reno (paver installation)

ACE GRADING & PAVING -- Contractor /6015 S. Virginia St., ~ Reno (asphalt paving)

A J ELECTRIC, LL.C - Contractor / 3659 Crestridge Way ~ Reno (electrical contractor)

ARROW SIGN COMPANY — Contractor / 1051 46™ Avenue ~ Oakland, CA (sign contractor)
IONIX, LLC ~ General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change TRI
RICH DOSS, INC, — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

TEEARp

Inspection Required

ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Kris Wilkison
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office Jessie Fain




